VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE ADVISORY PARKING COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 7, 2020
7:30am

https://zoom.us/j/99788929654 or dial: 877 853 5247 US Toll-free, Meeting
ID: 997 8892 9654

1. Roll Call

2. Introductions

3. Review of the Agenda

4. Approval of Minutes, Meeting of March 4, 2020

5. Approval of Minutes, Meeting of August 19, 2020

6. Alternative Parking Management Structures — RFP Update
7. BSD Holiday Marketing Campaign

8. Master Plan Review — Status Review

9. Meeting Open to the Public for items not on the Agenda
10. Miscellaneous Communications

11. Next Meeting — Wednesday, November 4, 2020

12. Adjournment

Notice: Due to COVID-19, City Hall is closed to the public and all meetings are being conducted virtually
through May 15, 2020. All virtual meetings are closed captioned for the hearing impaired.

Persons with disabilities that may require assistance for effective participation in this public meeting should contact
the City Clerk’s Office at the number (248) 530-1880, or (248) 644-5115 (for the hearing impaired) at least one day
before the meeting to request help in visual, hearing, or other assistance.

Las personas con incapacidad que requieren algun tipo de ayuda para la participacién en esta sesion publica deben
ponerse en contacto con la oficina del escribano de la ciudad en el nimero (248) 530-1800 o al (248) 644-5115 (para
enos un dia antes de la reunion para solicitar ayuda a la visual, auditiva, o de otras asistencias. (Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964).


https://zoom.us/j/
https://zoom.us/j/93483721344

City of Birmingham
ADVISORY PARKING COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

Held Remotely Via Zoom And Telephone Access
Wednesday, August 19, 2020

MINUTES

These are the minutes of the Advisory Parking Committee ("APC") regular meeting held on
Wednesday, August 19, 2020. The meeting was called to order at 8:00 a.m. by
Vice-Chairwoman Gayle Champagne.

1. Rollcall

Present: Vice-Chairwoman Gayle Champagne
Richard Astrein (left 9:08 a.m.)
Michael Horowitz
Steven Kalczynski
Judith Paskiewicz (arrived 8:22 a.m.)
Lisa Silverman
Jennifer Yert

Absent: Chairman Al Vaitas
Anne Honhart
Lisa Krueger

SP+ Parking: Sara Dixon
Jay ODell
Chris Tretter

Administration:  Tiffany Gunter, Asst. City Manager
Mike Albrecht, Police Commander
Mark Clemence, Police Chief
Laura Eichenhorn, Transcriptionist

2. Recognition Of Guests

None,

3. Approval Of Minutes: Meetings Of May 6, May 13, and June 3, 2020
Motion by Mr. Astrein

Seconded by Ms. Yert to approve the minutes of the regular APC meetings of May 6,
May 13, and June 3, 2020 as submitted.



Advisory Parking Committee Proceedings
August 19, 2020

Motion carried, 6-0.

ROLL CALL VOTE
Yeas: Astrein, Silverman, Champagne, Horowitz, Kalczynski, Yert
Nays: None

4, Continued Free Parking Alternatives — Recommendation — Action
ACM Gunter presented the item.

After Committee discussion, there was consensus that parking should remain free to support
City retailers through the end of December 2020, with a one-time fee charged at the end of
2020 to any permit holders wishing to maintain their permits for 2021. The Committee decided
on the one-time fee in order to allow the City to know the demand for parking permits going
into the new year.

Motion by Mr. Horowitz

Seconded by Mr. Astrein to recommend that the City Commission suspend parking
fees through the end of December 2020, notify parking permit holders that there
will be no monthly permit fees charged through the end of December 2020 and
notify parking permit holders that they will be charged a one-time fee of $100 due
November 30, 2020 should they want to reserve their parking permit for 2021,

Mr. Kalczynski expressed concern that the $100 could be prohibitive both for individuals and for
companies in addition to the normal monthly parking fees.

Mr. Horowitz observed that any individuals looking to retain parking permits for 2021 likely also
retained their jobs, meaning the cost would not be too onerous for them. He said that if the
Committee agreed that the $100 per parking permit would be too costly en masse to charge
corporations the Committee could decline the $100 stated in the motion and recommend
another amount.

Motion carried, 7-0.

ROLL CALL VOTE

Yeas: Horowitz, Astrein, Champagne, Paskiewicz, Silverman, Kalczynski, Yert

Nays: None

5. Civicsmart Meters ~ Technological Upgrade - Action

Police Commander Albrecht and the SP+ team presented the item.

Mr. Kalczynski said that given the economic impact of Covid-19 on the City he thought it would

be inappropriate to both spend $150,000 on the meter upgrades at this time and to waive the
competitive bidding process.



Advisory Parking Committee Proceedings
August 19, 2020

Police Chief Clemence explained that the City's current meters run on a 2G network. He stated
that the 2G network will become obsolete, and that it could be as early as December 2020 or as
late as December 2021. Once the 2G network is no longer supported, the City’s meters will not
work until they are replaced with newer, 4G technology. In addition, even if the 2G network
functions to some extent until December 2021 an increasing degradation of the signal could
result In the meters only working intermittently. He explained that in replacing the meters now
the City would be able to provide uninterrupted service.

Dr. Silverman noted residents had recently experienced a significant crisis of confidence in the
City administration in August 2019 in terms of competitive bids. She said that even if no other
corporations submit a bit it would still be more appropriate to run the competitive bid process in
order to restore citizens’ confidence in the transparency of the City’s workings.

Police Chief Clemence noted that CivicSmart, the City's current vendor, was offering to replace
the City’s meters for an approximate cost of $115,000 since they would be able to use much of
their same systems. He explained that other offers to carry out the work would likely be
upwards of $700,000 because all new systems wouid need to be implemented.

Dr. Silverman said it would be fine to use the City’s competitive bid process to determine that
the other offer made would not be competitive, She reiterated that given the recent crisis of
confidence skipping the competitive bid process altogether would not be appropriate.

Mr. Kalczynski noted that having intermittently-functioning parking meters could also erode
residents’ confidence in the City as well. He said he understood from that vantage point why it
would make sense to complete the work expediently for the lowest price offered.

In reply to ACM Gunter, Police Chief Clemence confirmed that if the project goes to bid it could
be difficult to install the new meters before December 2020, which is the earliest date the
current meters could cease being supported.

Mr. Horowitz asked whether the meters should not be 5G compatible since that technology is
becoming more common throughout the country.

Police Chief Clemence said his understanding was that 4G meter technology should remain
operable for another four to ten years from date of installation.

In reply to Dr. Paskiewicz, Police Chief Clemence said it was unlikely that CivicSmart knew the
City's present meters would become obsolete as quickly as they have.

Motion by Mr. Astrein

Seconded by Mr. Horowitz to waive the competitive bidding process and approve the
purchase of (1,150} LNG single space meters from CivicSmart, Inc., a sole source
vendor; further charging this expenditure in the amount of $115,000.00 to the
Automobile Parking System Fund capital outlay parking meters account #
101-301.002-971.0200.



Advisory Parking Committee Proceedings
August 19, 2020

Vice-Chairwoman Champagne noted that replacing the meters in order to ensure functionality
seemed more like maintenance of the City's current on-street parking system as opposed to a
new project requiring a new bidding process.

Mr. Horowitz asked if there was a way to acknowledge Dr. Silverman’s concerns in the motion
and to include a reply that explained why the APC was proceeding with waiving the bidding
process.

Mr. Kalczynski noted that CivicSmart being the ‘sole source vendor’ at least partially explained
the APC’s motivations for recommending a waiver of the competitive bidding process.

Mr. Horowitz said he trusted the City Commission would factor in Dr. Silverman’s concerns as
appropriate during their review of the APC’'s recommendation.

Motion carried, 7-0.

ROLL CALL VOTE

Yeas: Astrein, Horowitz, Yert, Champagne, Silverman, Paskiewicz, Kalczynski
Nays: None

6. Parking System Technology Draft RFP - Garage Equipment — Action

ACM Gunter presented the item.

There was no discussion by the Committee.

Motion by Mr. Astrein

Seconded by Mr. Kalczynski to recommend approval of the Parking System
Technology Draft RFP for Garage Equipment.

Motion carried, 7-0.

ROLL CALL VOTE

Yeas: Astrein, Kalczynski, Champagne, Silverman, Horowitz, Yert, Paskiewicz
Nays: None

7. Master Plan Discussion — Continued

Seeing that Committee members needed to depart the present meeting, the APC agreed to
resume discussion of the master plan at a future date.

Vice-Chairwoman Champagne recommended moving the item to the top of the October 2020
APC agenda.

8. Meeting Open For Matters Not On The Agenda



Advisory Parking Committee Proceedings
August 19, 2020

Dr. Paskiewicz recommended that the APC meet virtually for its October 2020 meeting.
9. Next Meeting: Wednesday, October 7, 2020
10.  Adjournment

No further business being evident, the meeting adjourned at 9:09 a.m.

Assistant City Manager Tiffany Gunter



o Worlkerhie € ity

@immgham MEMORANDUM

N Office of the City Manager
DATE: September 9, 2020
TO: City Commission
FROM: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager
SUBJECT: Alternative Parking Management Structures
INTRODUCTION:

The Commission requested a presentation of options considering alternative management
structures for the parking system per the following motion on August 10, 2020:

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, seconded by Commissioner Host
Requesting City Manager Valentine to provide the City Commission, no later than September 14,
2020, options for studying alternative management structures and best practices for managing
the parking systems.

BACKGROUND:

To best assess options for alternative management structures for the parking system, it may be
beneficial to first explain the types of management structures that exist as a prelude to the options
available for studying them. Assessments of the parking management structures are not
uncommon, but this was not included in the scope for the Downtown Parking Plan that was
prepared for the City by Nelson Nygard in September of 2018. The focus of this plan was on
operational strategies and not a review of the organizational structure or management model. In
review of other parking management plans, where a study was conducted on the organizational
structure, there are common management models that are evaluated, as well as, best practices.
Examples of these models are contained in the following plans and are attached to this report for
reference.

Township of Montclair, New Jersey (pop. 38,000) Parking Management Plan 2016
City of Durham, North Carolina {pop. 274,000) Comprehensive Parking Study
Billings, Montana (pop. 109,000) Parking Strategy Plan 2015

City of Trenton, New Jersey (pop. 84,000) Downtown Parking Management Plan

The various options that exist in conducting such a review include the following fundamental
approaches.

1. Have staff study alternate management structures and best practices for managing
parking systems and present a report with recommendations.

2. Create a resolution creating an Ad Hoc Committee to study alternate management
structures and best practices for managing parking systems and present a report with
recommendations.

1

7B



3. Have staff solicit a proposal from Nelson Nygard to amend their September 2018
Downtown Parking Plan fo study alternate management structures and best practices for
managing parking systems and present a report with recommendations.

4, Have staff solicit proposals from professional parking consulting firms to study alternate
management structures and best practices for managing parking systems and present a
report with recommendations.

LEGAL REVIEW:
No legal review was required in the development of this report.

FISCAL IMPACT:

In reviewing costs from other municipalities for their parking plans that included an assessment
of alternative management structures, the costs are outlined below. It is important to note that
the costs below are representative of a full parking plan which included a section on the
management structures. A scope focused entirely on a study of management models should cost
considerably less.

Durham, North Carolina - $158,035
Billings, Montana -$ 68,025
Trenton, NJ -$ 99,360
SUMMARY

In follow up to the City Commission’s direction, a list of options have been presented below in
the form of resolutions to direct further action on this issue, should the Commission wish to do
s0.

ATTACHMENTS:
» Township of Montclair, New Jersey Parking Management Plan
« City of Durham, North Carolina Comprehensive Parking Study
¢ Billings, Montana Parking Strategy Plan
¢ City of Trenton, New Jersey Downtown Parking Management Plan

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION:
1. To direct staff to study alternate management structures and best practices for managing
parking systems and present a report with recommendations to the City Commission,
OR
2. To direct staff to prepare a resolution creating an Ad Hoc Committee to study alternate
management structures and best practices for managing parking systems and present a
report with recommendations.
OR
3. To direct staff solicit a proposal from Nelson Nygard to amend their September 2018
Downtown Parking Plan to study alternate management structures and best practices for
managing parking systems and present a report with recommendations.
OR
4, To direct staff to solicit proposals from professional parking consulting firms to study
alternate management structures and best practices for managing parking systems and
present a report with recommendations.



DRAFT - Parking Management Plan - DRAFT
Montclair, New Jersey

Management Organization &
Operations Strategies

PRIMARY OBJECTIVE:
Applvy management organization and operations strategies to
optimize the Township's parking and access management.

Enhancing the current parking management system in the Montclair Township is a critical
element for improving the overall downtown experience. Well-managed, customer-oriented
parking facilities and management policies encourage visitors to shop, work, and explore local
cultural and entertainment options by improving access to downtown attractions, reducing traffic
congestion, and clearly informing users about regulations and fee structures associated with
available parking. Ultimately, expanding the scope of parking program to incorporate a range of
access management and transportation demand management strategies is recommended. The
creation of such a system will support commerce; promote the City’s transportation,
sustainability, and traffic mitigation goals; and advance the broader objectives of economic
development and downtown vitality.

Parking program reorganization initiatives are often initiated to support larger community-wide
strategic plans, transportation plans or downtown master planning projects. Parking
reorganization and management plans can also support retail enhancement strategies. Regardless
of the catalyst, parking initiatives often share a set of core goals and priorities that emphasize the
need to address the concerns of multiple constituencies, support the development of a vibrant
community, and provide safe, user-friendly parking facilities that balance the public need with
private interests. All of this must be accomplished in consideration of funding mechanisms and
strategies that continue to benefit the community in the long-term.

The recommendations in this section include both Organizational Strategies — transformative
changes to the structure of the MPU that will have long-term impact on the effective
implementation of the overall PMP — and Operational Strategies — changes to the “day to day”
operations of the MPU parking system that will bring improvement to the current and future
functions of the MPU.

ORGANIZATIONAL STRATEGIES

Organizational Structure

Parking management best practices from a program organizational perspective, center on the
concept of a “vertical integration” of parking functions. This is in contrast to the typical
“horizontally fragmented” organizational structures that tend to evolve naturally in many
municipal parking organizations across the U.S. The chart below identifies a recommended
reorganization of the MPU.

MelsoniNygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 42



DRAFT - Parking Management Plan - DRAFT
Montclair, New Jersey

Figure 15 Proposed MPU Organizational Structure

Parking / Access

Management Director
1.0 FTE

Parking Operations Manager
1.0 FTE

Principal Clerk Customer Service
1.0 FTE 1.0 FTE

Supervisor Meter
Enforcement
1.0 FTE

Senior Meter Collector
1.0 FTE

P/T Meter
Collector Meter Enforcement

0.5 FTE 4.0 FTEs

P/T Meter
Maintenance
0.5 FTE

Neison\Nygaard Consuliing Associates, Inc. | 43



DRAFT - Parking Management Plan - DRAFT
Moniclair, New Jersey

Create a Program Director Position

Today, the MPU does not have a Director. The Montclair Parking Authority (MPA) had a position
of Executive Director. This position was the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Operating
Officer (COO) of the MPA. The Executive Director reported to the Board of Commissioners of the
MPA. There was also an administrative assistant to support the executive director. The
Operations Manager also had two direct reports; two maintenance workers.

The Program Director is a critical position, especially one that is the size of Montclair. The
Township should formalize the Director level position by creating a position description fora
Parking Director, post the job and let the application process take a normal course. To reflect the
recommended program scope expansion it is recommended that the new Director position title be
changed to Parking/Access Management Program Director. This will benefit the Township and
this organization to establish a formal head with the proper authority and responsibility for a
parking management system of this size.

The following duties are normal for this classification. These are not to be construed as exclusive
or all-inclusive. Other duties may be required and assigned.

» Provides leadership, oversight and management of the town’s parking utility functions,
including maintenance of pay stations, parking meters, parking permits, parking lots, and
parking enforcement operations and revenue.

= Prepares RFPs and participates in the selection of contractor(s) for the maintenance of the
parking facilities. Determines the service level for the maintenance of parking facilities and
pay stations.

= Responds to public inquiries, suggestions or complaints in a prompt, professional manner.

= Maintains confidentiality of all proprietary department information and personnel matters
including medical information.

*  Coordinates with the Police Department on various parking related enforcement issues.

« Coordinates with the Police Department on parking traffic control during Montclair special
events.

= Conducts daily inspection of parking facilities.
s Provides an analysis of parking ticket revenues, parking meter revenues, summary report of
credit card transactions, hours of operations, demand, ete.

«  Provides recommendations to the Parking Utility Board for changes to fee structure and
operation.
»  Program pay stations accordingly for fees, rates, time of day, holidays, special events.

« Recommends improvements to the operations to provide cost effective and efficient
utilization and customer service.

= Maintains records of all maintenance and repairs on parking facilities and equipment.
* Recommends improvements related to public safety in the parking facilities.

*  Collects and deposits monies, cash sales and billing payments. Maintains related
accounting records.

= Provides recommendations to Parking Utility for the annual operating and capital
improvement budgets for the Parking Utility.

» Enforces cost control measures, eliminates redundant systems and establishes and
implements cost control measures to ensure compliance with budgetary limitations.

Nelson\Nygaard Consuiting Associates, Inc. | 44



DRAFT - Parking Management Plan - DRAFT
Montclair, New Jersey

= Develops, communicates and monitors policies, procedures and standards for the Parking
Utility.
This list is expanded upon in Appendix ___ - a white paper entitled “The 20 Characteristics of

Effective Parking Programs”. This document could serve as a road map for program development
going forward.

Create and Operatlons Manager Position

There is no longer a Manager of Operations position as there was under the parking authority.
The functions of striping, cleaning, and meter installation are currently provided for by the
Department of Public Works (DPW). There is one (1) full-time equivalent (FTE) to service the 32
surface lots.

To make the parking function more “vertically integrated”, the function currently being provided
by DPW staff should be transferred to the Parking Utility and made the responsibility of a
reinstated parking operations manager position reporting directly to the Parking/Access
Management Director position. A specific task list and position description for this new position
should be created with the intent to free up some of the Director’s time to enable that position to
be focused on program development and with a more of an “out-ward focusing role”. The
Operations Manager position should be more internally and operations focused. It is
recommended that this position should also fill the function of a “special projects coordinator”.

Staffing Cost Implications

The table below compares the current program'’s staffing/salaries to the recommended program.

Figure 16  Current and Proposed Staffing

Current Organizatiun ' : "Recommended Organization
$67,368 Project Administrator S$80,000 Parking/Access Management Director
640,974 Senior Meter Collector 465,000 OQperations Manager
634,799 Principal Clerk 540,974 Part-Time Meter Collector
542,534 Supervisor Meter Enforcement 524,584 Part-Time Meter Maintenzance
532,506 Meter Enforcement Officer $34,799 Principal Clerk
$37,422 Meter Enforcement Officer $34,799 Customer Service
$36,526 Meter Enforcement Officer 542,534 Supervisor Meter Enforcement
$37,068 Meter Enforcement Officer $32,506 Meter Enforcement

$37,422 Meter Enforcement Officer
$36,526 Meter Enforcement Officer
$37,068 Meter Enforcement Officer

329,217 Total Salaries 5466,212 Total Salaries

Difference: |l 136,985 - Upgrade of Project Adminstrator
to Parking/Access Management Director

- Addition of Parking Operations Manager
- Addition of Two P/T Personnel

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 45




DRAFT - Parking Management Plan - DRAFT
Montclair, New Jersey

Mission and Scope Expansion
Mobility & TDM

Trends in the industry reflect a movement to expand the scope of traditional parking programs to
embrace a broader “access management” paradigm. While parking remains an important
element of the overall program, it should not be the only program focus. Managing both the
supply and demand sides of the “access equation” is a central theme of an “access management”
program. Thus, creating or supporting programs to increase the range of access options becomes
an important element of the new program model which emphasizes a number of ‘mobility
management” alternatives to single occupant vehicle use, This typically includes promoting a
range of transportation demand management (TDM) programs, supporting “active
transportation” modes (bike/peds) as well as promoting good urban design, walkability, transit
oriented development, shared parking, etc.

The MPU should establish a dedicated enterprise fund with all parking-related revenue streams
defined as contributing revenue sources. In many communities parking revenues are allocated to
the City’s general fund and getting these funds reallocated can be a difficult proposition. An
alternative to this can be to consider the City owned parking assets as if they were private and
“taxable”. The amount of tax that would be generated under this scenario becomes the defined
contribution that parking makes to the general fund. This still allows for some contribution to the
general fund, but at a defined level. The bulk of the parking funds are used to cover operating
expenses and creating reserves for maintenance, future capital projects and enhanced community
access or economic development initiatives.

Misslon & Vision Statement

Truly effective parking systems have a clear vision and well-defined mission. The development or
periodic reassessment of the parking system’s vision/mission statements should be undertaken as
an open and inclusive process involving a wide range of stakeholders. Typically, it is
recommended that the following groups be included in the public input process.

* City Planning
= TPAC
» District Business Associations

The development of a parking system’s vision and mission statements should have one
overarching goal—to see that the parking system’s purpose and direction are tied to and
supportive of the larger strategic development plan. There are a variety of ways that parking can
support the health, vitality, and sustainability of a downtown or business district.

Having a professionally managed parking program that presents clean, safe, attractive, and well-

maintained facilities is perhaps the most visible dimension. Other attributes include providing an
adequate supply of parking and the appropriate allocation and management of those resources to
best support the various businesses that depend on them for success. Successfully meeting these

goals promotes downtown business retention and attraction.

The parking system administrator should play a key role in providing educational support to
community leaders about the importance of parking and the role(s) parking can play (and cannot
play) in meeting community objectives. Staying abreast of the latest technological developments
related to parking systems can broaden the options available to improve parking system
management effectiveness and efficiency.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulling Associates, Inc. | 46



DRAFT - Parking Management Plan - DRAFT
Montclair, New Jersey

Examples of municipal parking program mission/vision statements for your consideration:

Missoula, MT—Welcome to Missoula's Downtown! Qur Mission: The Missoula Parking
Commission (MPC) plays an important role in making Missoula's downtown a great
experience. Our mission is to work with government, businesses, and citizens to provide
and manage parking and parking alternatives. MPC identifies and responds to the ever
changing parking needs in the area for which it is responsible.

Boulder, CO—Our Mission: We manage the parking garages, on-street systems and
enforcement for Boulder's three major commercial areas: Downtown Boulder, University
Hill and, when completed, Boulder Junction. We also manage the 10 Neighborhood Permit
programs throughout Boulder. Our Mission is to provide quality program, parking,
enforcement, maintenance, and alternative modes services through the highest level of
customer service, efficient management and effective problem solving.

Mammoth Lakes, CA—Vision Statement: The Mammoth Lakes Parking Management
Organization will strive to develop a superior, customer-oriented parking system,
responding to the current and future needs of parkers, including visitors, employees,
employers and property owners through active planning, management, coordination and
communications. The Parking Management Organization shall be considered an integral
component of the community’s economic development strategies and programs.

Philosophy & Guiding Principles

A succinct statement or statements reflecting your philosophical approach to parking can provide
valuable tools for communicating to patrons, stakeholders, and staff. What are guiding
principles? Any principles or precepts that guide an organization throughout its life in all
circumstances, irrespective of changes in its goals, strategies, type of work, or the top
management.

Some examples of parking philosophies are noted below along with a brief commentary.

1. Parking Isn’t About Cars. .. It's About People

This statement reflects an understanding that parking is not simply the act of temporarily
storing cars, but it is in fact more about addressing needs when transitioning from the
vehicular to the pedestrian experience. Under this philosophy, issues such as facility
cleanliness, safety, lighting, wayfinding, and customer service move to the forefront.
Functional design elements that directly impact user comfort, such as stall widths, turn
radii, walking distances, etc., also take on special importance.

2. People Don’t Come Downtown to Park

This concept reinforces the reality that parking, while an important support function and
critical infrastructure element, is not the reason people visit your downtown. For the
downtown to be successful, there must be good restaurants, interesting retail, and other
special attractions.

The fundamental principle behind this philosophy is three-fold:
1. The role of parking is to support other downtown activities.
2, Eliminate parking as a reason not to come downtown

3. Recognize what parking is not (i.e., an attraction).

3. Parking Should Be a Positive Experience

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 47



DRAFT - Parking Management Plan - DRAFT
Montclair, New Jersey

For years, a parking consulting firm had a slogan: “Parking should be a non-event.” This
notion has undergone a qualitative evolution to make parking not just a non-event, but
actually a positive experience. In their book The Experience Economy, Joseph Pine and
James Gilmore address the concept that, especially in America, what customers are
actually purchasing are positive experiences. One expression of this transition can be seen
in the healthcare arena. Have you noticed that the lobbies of newer health care facilities
have taken on the feel of grand hotel lobbies? Many parking management systems are
providing more extensive customer service training for all levels of staff members.

Parking is the First and Last Experience

Building on the concept above is an appreciation of the fact that most of our customers’
first and last impressions of any venue really begins and ends with their parking
experience. You might enjoy the best meal followed by a fabulous evening of
entertainment while downtown, but if you have to circle to find a parking space or are
accosted when walking from your car to your destination, your whole experience will be
tainted.

Parking Should Be Friendly, Not Free

There is no such thing as free parking. One of the ongoing challenges that downtowns
face when it comes to parking is cost. Because of land values, densities, and walking
distance issues, parking structures are here to stay in the downtown environment and
with them comes the need to charge for parking in one form or fashion. The perception
that parking at the mall is “free” doesn’t help {even though it is not true). Even if you
promote free parking as a marketing concept, someone is paying for that parking.
Whether it’s through increased taxes or an increased cost of goods/services, the cost of
providing parking is still there. This philosophy recognizes that reality and instead
focuses on providing a friendly, well-managed parking experience.

Parking is a Component of the Larger Transportation System

It is surprising how often parking gets divorced in people’s minds from being a
component of the larger transportation system. Because of its cost, structured parking is
often the reason that development projects “don’t pencil,” to use developer lingo. By
considering parking in the larger context of a broad range of transit and transportation
alternatives, demand management strategies (including shared parking policies) can be
developed to help reduce the amount of parking required, especially in urban areas where
good bus transit, light rail, taxi service, and in-town residential developments can be
found. As Montclair Township continues to grow, the MPU should continue to develop
programs that integrate complementary parking and transportation strategies as this is a
hallmark of this philosophy.

Recommended Guiding Principles

The following are a recommended set of parking program guiding principle categories followed by
actual guiding principle statements. These Guiding Principles will serve as a foundation for near
and long-term decision-making and implementation of parking management strategies in the
Montclair Township. These strategies are intended to support the on-going economic
development and vitality of Montclair. This is a process not a one-time task,

Nelson\Nygaard Consulling Associates, Inc. | 48



DRAFT - Parking Management Plan - DRAFT
Montclair, New Jersey

Gulding Principle # 1

The parking management program will be organized to be “vertically integrated”
with responsibility for:

= Managing on-street parking

= Cocrdination of off-street parking
= Parking enforcement

s Parking planning and development
»  Parking demand management

Consolidating the various parking functions under a single parking management organization will
establish a consolidated system that is action-oriented, responsive, and accountable with
improved coordination and operating efficiencies. Recruiting a strong leader is a key element for
success. The organization leader must have strong vision and comrmunications skills, specialized
parking and planning expertise, and be capable of educating other community leaders,
stakeholders and private sector partners on the importance and relevance of a strong parking
management organization. Strong general management and financial program development skills
are also required.

Guiding Principle #2

Parking will support the downtown as a desirable destination for businesses,
shopping, dining, and recreation by making parking a positive element of the
overall downtown experience.

The parking management organization will strive to develop and coordinate private and publically
owned parking facilities that are clean, convenient, safe, and secure for both the general public
and their staff. Parking enforcement program staff will present a friendly and professional
appearance and receive on-going customer service and downtown ambassador training. The
parking program will be responsive to community needs, open to fresh ideas and be actively
engaged in community planning and events. Management of the parking system will ultimately be
enhanced through investments in new technology and a strong focus on customer friendly
parking policies.

Guiding Principle # 3

The parking system will be guided by community and economic development goals
and adopted policy directives that are the result of collaborative processes between
parking management organization staff, other agencies and involved stakeholders.

The parking management organization will use its resources to promote mixed-use and shared-
use parking strategies as well as promoting alternative transportation modes through the creation
of incentives, partnerships and programs to attract private investment; this will include reviewing
and updating existing city parking requirements, as appropriate.

Guiding Princlple # 4

The Parking Management Organization will support the Downtown Main Street
Plan to promote a “Park Once” concept and a balance of travel modes, including
bus, vehicular, bicycle and pedestrian, to meet community-wide access goals.

The parking management plan will promote a “park once” strategy that uses parking supply
efficiently and emphasizes “linkages” to other forms of transportation. “Green” strategies that can

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 49



DRAFT - Parking Management Plan - DRAFT
Montclair, New Jersey

result in more efficient use of parking facilities and provide other benefits, including reduced
congestion, improved transportation choices, more efficient land use, and improved streetscape
aesthetics will be explored and supported.

Guiding Principle # 5

The Parking Management Organization will be an early adopter of technology
solutions to enhance customer service and enhance parking program efficiency and
effectiveness.

A key goal is to make parking less of an impediment to visiting Mammoth Lakes and more of an
amenity. Technology will be leveraged to streamline and simplify access to parking and will be a
key parking management strategy. Another key technology related goal is to enhance the
efficiency and effectiveness of parking management staff and programs.

Guiding Principle # 6

Parking management programs and facilities will be developed to function as a
positive, marketable asset for downtown.

One major goal of the parking management organization is to create a well-branded and
marketable program that will create for the visitor an easy to understand and easy to access
parking program. This will be accomplished through the use of program branding and marketing,
an integrated signage plan, validation programs, a web-based information clearing house and
special event parking programs.

Another important role that the parking management organization will play is that of “community
educator” on parking. Parking management strategies and programs will be cross-marketed to
promote downtown as a unique and visitor-friendly regional destination. The parking
management organization will develop an effective branding and marketing program. Parking
availability shall be well publicized to enhance the perception of parking as a positive element of
the downtown experience. Reinvestment of parking resources back into the downtown will be
encouraged and promoted.

In addition to web-based information, the parking management organization will develop a
variety of educational materials and workshops to promote parking management programs. The
parking management organization will work closely with the TBID, community economic
development and other downtown agencies/stakeholders to promote, educate and market
parking programs in downtown Mammoth Lakes.

Guiding Princlple # 7

Responsiveness to the Needs of a Diverse Customer/Citizen Base

The parking management organization should aim high and strive to achieve a “best-in-class”
parking program. All aspects of the Mammoth Lakes parking program should reflect an
understanding of what the customer desires in terms of a positive and memorable experience.

Special programs to address retail enhancement initiatives, shared-use parking, employee
parking, special/large events parking, etc. will be developed. These programs will be developed in
a collaborative manner and designed to support larger community goals and objectives. A range
of program options should be developed to address the unigue needs of different seasons as well
as special programs for permanent residents as contrasted to tourism based parking programs.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates, Inc. | 50



DRAFT - Parking Management Plan - DRAFT
Montclair, New Jersey

Guiding Principle # 8

Parking Information Clearinghouse & Coordination of On-Street, Off-Street, and
Special Event Programs

The Parking Management Organization shall take a lead role in parking program coordination.
From a planning and information clearinghouse perspective, the parking organization will be a
unifying and centralized resource that will coordinate and distribute information related to
parking supply, availability, planning, and special programs, event activities and other resources
such as the TBID.

This will be done through physical signage, branding and marketing, a robust planning function
and a strong web-based information program.

Guiding Princlple # 9

The Parking Management Organization shall have an active and comprehensive
planning function.

The Parking Management Organization will be included in all City and regional strategic and
transportation planning efforts. The Parking Management Organization will work with City staff
to review and evaluate parking zoning requirements, the development of parking design
standards that promote good urban design principles related to parking structures and mixed-use
projects, and the creation of parking standards for transit oriented development.

Effective parking planning will mean an improved understanding of parking supply/demand, and
the development of parking infrastructure that will enhance and better support the community
strategic goals and urban design objectives.

Guiding Principle # 10
Clean, Safe, Attractive and Well-Maintained Facilities

Empbhasis will be placed on enhancing parking facility appearance, maintenance, safety and
security, regardless of facility ownership. The Parking Management Organization will promote
standards to encourage comprehensive and pro-active facility maintenance and security plans.

Facility maintenance reserves and other maintenance best practices will be encouraged in Town

owned facilities. Publicly available parking facilities marketed through the Parking Management
Organization will agree to a community developed set of parking facility standards. Participating
facilities will be routinely monitored.

Some parking facilities incorporate public art and creative level identification and theming to
enhance the parking experience for their patrons and make large parking facilities more
navigable. Continued development of these initiatives will be supported.

Guiding Principle # 11

The Parking Management Organization will be a forward thinking, “best in class”
parking program.

The Parking Management Organization should anticipate future patron needs in the context of
the Main Street plan and other planning initiatives and seek to integrate supportive parking and
multi-modal access strategies as appropriate.

Evaluation of other parking management best practices and new technologies should occur on an
on-going basis.

Nelson\Nygaard Consuiting Asscciates, inc. | 51



DURHAM

Il City of Durham Downtown Study Area
1Eé&

Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

T 08 i

9 | Management Organizational Options

This section examines a number of effective parking management operational methodologies as well as Parking
Management Organizational options that are models for the possible reorganization of Durham’s parking
program. For each organizational model explored in this section, examples are provided from communities that
have successfully implemented those program organizational structures. Also identified is the significant
contributions these programs provide to support their larger community strategic goals.

Parking Management Program Organization Evolution

Over the past several years Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. has conducted extensive research into how parking
systems evolve organizationally. This area of interest emerged in conjunction with our research and
documentation of parking management “best practices” from around the country.

Municipal Parking System Evolution

Many parking systems, especially in municipal environments, have evolved over time into organizational
structures that we have termed “horizontally fragmented.” This means that various parking system components
are spread among multiple departments or entities. It is important to realize that when these systems were
being created, parking management as a profession had not fully developed.

The following example describes how many municipal parking programs evolved and also reflects the
“functional fragmentation” that this approach can produce.

o There was a2 need to establish a parking functior. The initial need was to manage on-street
parking assets. Because Pubhc Works already managed the streets, this function was lacated
under the Public Works department,

When the need for an enforcement function achieved critical mass, this was logically assigned to
the Police Department as enforcement was their specialty.

Over time, off-street jots and parking structures werp added.  The management of these
resources wds placed under the Facilities Management Sivision, because they managed the City's
real estate assets and facilities,

Soon there was enough revenue being generated that an audit/accounting function was
established to ensure accountability over the revenues and expenses. This function was placed
under the Finance Bivisian,

Fast forward to today. There is growing interest in Downtown Durham as a place to work, live, and play. The
community is making impressive advances in Downtown development and revitalization and as a result, parking
is emerging as a significant element. To successfully combat the challenges that parking will continue to pose on
Downtown, the City should assess parking system organizational structures for implementation that best fit the

goals of the city.
In a horizontally structured parking program, each department manages only one aspect of the parking system
(such as on-street parking, enforcement, or parking structures). No one has responsibility or the perspective

and understanding of all the functional areas to manage the interrelated components as a system. In many
cases, parking can be described as everyone’s part-time job, but no one’s full-time job thus there is no overall

accountability for parking as a system.

Downtown Study Area 109



DURHAM

I' City of Durham Downtown Study Area
B8 “Comprehensive Parking Study  MIANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

It is interesting to note the variety of ways in which the “horizontal fragmentation of parking systems” has
evolved in different cities. Some have evolved along the lines of assigning different functions to various
departments as noted in the example above. Some have peculiar combinations of functional and geographic
divisions. Another category related to parking system organization and management has to do with whether
the municipality has chosen to invest in the development of a significant off-street parking program (the
construction/management of parking structures/iots). Finally, the community’s approach to self-management
of resources versus their desire for out-sourcing certain functions also plays a role.

Parking Management Organizational Best Practices

The current best practices data is fairly agnostic to the exact organizational framewaork, but the fundamental
characteristic of all the most successful strategies is the principle of “vertical integration” of parking functions,
which is what is currently mimicked in the City of Durham’s organizational structure. The minimum degree of
integration is management by one entity of the on- and off-street parking and parking enforcement functions.
More advanced models include parking/transportation planning, transportation demand management
programs, and even transit system management in smaller communities.

Another dimension that we will discuss related to the organization and management of a vertically integrated
parking program is issue of self-management versus outsourcing/contract management. Within the contract
management context we will review two primary approaches - management agreements and concession
agreements.

We would be remiss if we did not at least mention another emerging trend in this area — parking system
privatization or “monetization.” While there s not a lot of history in this area relative to parking systems, recent
examples in Chicago, Pittsburgh, Atlanta and Indianapolis are worth noting. Parking system monetization refers
to the offering a long-term lease of specific parking assets (essentially a long-term concession agreement) in
exchange for a large upfront payment.

There also is a cadre of major U.S. cities that have not made a significant investment in the development of a
public off-street parking system (e.g. Charlotte, NC). This is neither good nor bad, but it does have an impact on
the organizational options to be considered in terms of how these cities can most effectively organize a parking
program designed to achieve the community’s specific program goals and objectives.

in addressing this particular condition in other communities, we developed a new program approach that we
call “the parking management collaborative.” The goal of this approach is to essentially create a “management
overlay” onto a collection of public and private parking assets, such that from a visitor’s perspective, the parking
system looks and feels like a public parking system despite the actua! distributed ownership behind the scenes.

This option, along with the more traditional parking system organizational options (parking authorities, parking
districts, a vertically integrated city department, BID or contract management options, etc.) are discussed later
in this section following a discussion of defining program goals.

Program Goals

As part of this study, a preliminary set of program goals were developed. These will serve as the program
foundation and help in setting priorities and establishing community partnerships for the Downtown Parking
Plan. A statement better defining each of the twelve example guiding principles is provided.

Downtown Study Area 110



DURHAM
18679
&y el el

City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

Program Goal #1 Organization / Leadership

The management of the parking program will be organized to be “vertically integrated” with responsibility for:
¢ Managing on-street parking
s Coordination of off-street parking
e Parking enforcement
e Parking planning and development
e Parking demand management

Consolidating various parking functions under a single Parking Management Organization establishes a
consolidated system that is action-oriented, responsive, and accountable with improved coordination and
operating efficiencies. The current city organizational structure mimics this “yertically integrated” concept.

Program Goal #2 Custamer Service Orientation

Parking will support downtown Durham as a desirable destination for workers, businesses, shopping, dining,
entertainment, and recreation by making parking a positive element of the overall community experience.

The Downtown Parking Plan will strive to develop and coordinate private and publically owned parking facilities
that are clean, convenient and safe.

Parking enforcement staff will present a friendly and professional appearance and receive on-going customer
service and community ambassador training.

| Responsiveness to community needs, openness to fresh ideas, and active participation in community planning
and events will be among the ongoing goals of the Parking Management Organization.

One major goal of the parking organization is to create a “management overlay” that will create an easy to
understand and easy to access parking program for visitors. This will be accomplished through the use of
common branding and marketing, an integrated signage plan, validation programs, a web-based information
clearing house, special events program coordination, etc.

Management of the on-street parking system will be enhanced through an investment in new technology and
more customer friendly parking enforcement policies.

Program Goal #3 Community and Economic Development

The parking system will be guided by community and economic development goals and City Council adopted
policy directives that are the result of collaborative processes between Parking Management Organization staff,
other agencies, and involved stakeholders.

The Parking Management Organization will use its resources to promote mixed-use and shared-use parking
strategies as well as promoting alternative transportation modes through the creation of Incentives,
partnerships and programs to attract private investment. This will include reviewing and updating existing clity
parking requirements as appropriate.

Downtown Study Area 111



DURHAM

1869
]

Mo+

City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

Program Goal #4 Integrated Transportation / Sustainability

The Parking Management Organization will promote the “park once” concept and a balance of travel modes,
including rail, bus, vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian to meet community-wide access goals.

The Downtown Parking Plan will promote a “park once” strategy that uses parking supply efficiently and
emphasizes “linkages” to other forms of transportation.

“Green” strategies that can result in more efficient use of parking facilities and provide other benefits, including
reduced congestion, improved transportation choices, more efficient land use, and improved streetscape
aesthetics will be explored and supported.

Program Goal #5 Leveraging Technology

The Parking Management Organization will be an early adopter of technology solutions to enhance customer
service and parking information options.

A key goal is to make parking less of an impediment to visiting downtown Durham and more of an amenity.

Technology will be leveraged to streamline and simplify access to parking and will be a key parking management |
strategy. Another key technology related goal is to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of parking
management staff and programs.

A prime example of the use of technology to leverage improvements in customer service, enforcement, and
system efficiency is the implementation of a fee for on-street parking that accepts credit cards as a payment
option. This implementation can provide more convenient payment options for patrons, real-time data for
streamlined enforcement, and better use of the curb space.

Program Goal #6 Communications / Branding / Community Education

Parking management programs and facilities will be developed to function as a positive, marketable asset for
downtown Durham.

Parking management strategies and programs will be cross-marketed to promote Downtown Durham as a
unique and visitor-friendly regional destination. Parking availability shall be well publicized to enhance the
perception of parking as a positive element of the community experlence. Reinvestment of parking resources |
back into the downtown will be promoted. The Parking Management Organization will develop an effective
| marketing and branding program.

In addition to web-based information, the Parking Management Organization will develop educational materials
on topics such as: parking development trends, parking safety tips, etc. The organization also will promote
discussion with parking facility owners/operators on topics such as facility condition assessments, maintenance
program development, parking management best practices, etc.

Downtown Durham parking programs and information shall be well promoted and marketed. The Parking
| Management Organization will work closely with Bowntown Durham, Inc., Office of Economic and Workforce
Development, and other community agencies/stakeholders to promote, educate, and market parking programs
in downtown Durham.

Downtown Study Area 112



City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

Program Goal #7 Program Development / Responsiveness

Responsiveness to the Needs of a Diverse Customer/Citizen Base.

The Parking Management Organization should aim high and strive to achieve a “best-in-class” parking program.
All aspects of Downtown Durham parking should reflect an understanding of what the customer desires in terms
of a positive and memaorable experience.

Special programs to address retail enhancement initiatives, shared-use parking, residential parking, employee
parking, special/large events parking, etc. will be developed in a collaborative manner and designed to support
larger community goals and objectives.

Program Goal #38 Information Clearinghouse / Coordinated Programs

Parking Information Clearinghouse and Coordination of On-Street, Off-Street, and Special Event Programs.

The Parking Management Organization shall take a lead role in parking program coordination. From a planning
and information clearinghouse perspective, the organization will be a unifying and centralized resource that will
coordinate and distribute information related to parking supply, availability, planning, and special programs,
event activities and other resources. This will be done through physical signage, branding and marketing, a
robust planning function and a strong web-based information program.

Program Goal #9 Planning / Urban Design

The Parking Management Organization shall have an active and comprehensive planning function, including
strategic and transportation planning efforts.

The organization will work with City staff to review and evaluate parking zoning requirements, the development
of parking design standards that promote good urban design principles related to parking structures and mixed-
use projects, and the creation of transit oriented development parking standards.

Effective parking planning will mean improved understanding of parking supply/demand and development of
parking infrastructure that will enhance and better support the community strategic goals and urban design.

Program Goal #10 Safe, Attractive, and Well-Maintained Facilities

Emphasis will be placed on enhancing parking facility appearance, maintenance, safety and security, regardless
of facility ownership. The parking organization will promote standards to encourage comprehensive and pro-
active facility maintenance and security plans.

Facility maintenance reserves and other maintenance best practices will be encouraged in City owned facilities.
Publicly available parking facilities marketed through the Parking Management Organization will agree to a set
of parking facility standards that is developed through a joint coordination effort between the City and
stakeholders. Participating facilities will be routinely monitored.

Some parking facilities incorporate public art and creative level identification/theming to enhance the parking
experience for patrons and make large parking facilities more navigable. Continued development of these
initiatives will be supported.

Downtown Study Area 113



DURHAM

IH City of Durham Downtown Study Area
\Beg Ccompr ehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

Program Goal #11 Effective Management / Accountability

' The Parking Management Organization will be a forward thinking “best in class” parking program.

The Parking Management Organization will anticipate future patron needs in the context of the Downtown
Durham Master Plan and other planning initiatives and seek to integrate supportive parking and multi-modal
access strategies as appropriate.

Evaluation of other parking management best practices and new technologies will occur on an on-going basis.

Effective facility maintenance, infrastructure reinvestment and other system management fundamentals will be
routinely addressed.

Program Goal #12 Self-Funding / Accountability

The parking system will be financially self-supporting and accountable to stakeholders.

The Parking Management Organization will work toward developing a parking system that is self-supporting and
sets aside funds for maintenance reserves and future capital asset funding.

By aligning approved parking revenue streams from on-street, off-street, enforcement, and potentially special
assessment fees and fee-in-lieu programs, it is possible to develop a parking system that self-funds all operating
and maintenance expenses, facility maintenance reserves, planning studies and future capital program
allocations.

A consolidated parking revenue and expense statement should be developed to document all parking related
income streams and expenditures to give a true accounting of parking finances.

Program Goals Summary

If adopted, these Program Goals will serve as a foundation for near- and long-term decision making and
implementation of parking management strategies for the Downtown Durham Parking Management
Organization.

These strategies are intended to support the on-going economic development and vitality of downtown
Durham. This is a process not a one-time task.

Teamwork and collaboration between the Parking Management Organization, City officials, Downtown
management, transportation agencies and other stakeholders will be a key for success moving forward.

The Parking Management Organization will support the larger Durham area transportation plan, other area or
regional plans as well as the business district strategic plan.

Parking System Operating Methodologies

Once a management structure has been determined, operating methodologies are another
organizational/management consideration. There are three primary methodologies for operating parking
programs.

Downtown Study Area 114




DURHAM

I H City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Yeeg: Comprehenslve Parking Study ~ IMANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

1. Self-Operation — The managing entity or owner operates the parking program itself. For example, a
downtown parking authority or City department can hire the necessary staff to operate the parking
system internally.

2. Outsourced: Management Contract — The facility owner or managing organization contracts a private
parking management firm to handle day-to-day operations and maintenance through a management
contract. Through the management contract, the private parking management firm is either paid a fixed
management fee and/or a percentage of gross revenues and Is reimbursed by the owner for all costs
incurred in the operation.

3. Outsourced: Concession Agreement — The facility owner or managing organization contracts a parking
management firm to assume full responsibility for all aspects of the operation, including expenses, and
the parking management firm pays the owner a guaranteed amount and/or a percentage of gross
revenues {or a combination).

A variation on the concession agreement methodology that is being introduced in the U.S. parking market is that
of parking system “monetization.” A more detailed description of each option is provided in the following sub-
sections.

Self-Operation

Self-operation of the parking system requires that the owning entity provides all the necessary employees (e.g.,
full- or part-time staff and/or temporary employees), equipment, supplies, etc. With this method of operation,
the owning entity receives all gross parking revenues and pays for all operating expenses. Self-operation
requires internal administrative and managerial staff at a higher level than the management contract or

concession style agreements.

Self-operation allows the owning entity to have complete control over the parking facilities and the level of
service provided to its patrons. This requires a well-trained and experienced staff to effectively manage a large
parking operation with significant daily revenues. Parking has become a highly specialized field and also
requires good general and facility management skills. Without proper training and professional development,
self-operation can result in a lower than desired level of service and revenue controls.

Potential advantages of self-operation include:
e Complete control over day-to-day parking operations, including customer service.

e Internal parking knowledge to assist with future planning.

Example “Self-Operated” Programs

e Uniform look and feel with other city services.
s City of Missoula, MT

s Better control over staff and staff training.
e (ityof Boulder, CO

¢ Eliminates paying a management fee to a vendor. ’ - g ,
o City of Fort Collins, CGO

Disadvantages to this approach would include:
e Typically higher expenses than contracting with a private parking provider due to the following:
o Higher pay rates than private operators especially in a unionized environment
o More restrictive benefit requirements

o Higher staff training and development costs

Downtown Study Area 115



DURHAM

IH City of Durham Downtown Study Area
/B8 Comprehensive Parking Study  MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

o Private operators have a greater economy of scale relative to supplies

o Higherinsurance costs/requirements since the City holds 100% of risk and liability

e More operational duties for the city.

e Smaller staff pool to draw from for covering sick days and vacations. Internal staff is limited, whereas
contracted operators can draw from a larger pool of qualified staff.

e The city will need to find and hire experienced parking staff.

» Requires budgeting for on-going training of new staff to maintain customer service levels.

¢ The city will have higher administrative and back office costs than an experienced private operator.
e The city will deal directly with customer complaints.

o The city will assume maximum financial risks related with the parking system.

e Can be difficult to terminate the employment of staff when needed.

Management Agreement Operations

In this form of operation the owning entity retains complete control over staffing levels, validation policies,
parking rates, and customer service policies. With a management agreement, the parking operator provides the
necessary labor and services for the operation of the parking facilities in accordance with an agreed upon
policies and annual operating expense budgets established by the owner. The parking operator then receives a
monthly payment, either a lJump sum amount or a percentage of the gross or net revenue. This monthly
payment represents the fee to manage the facilities.

The parking operator will provide the owning entity with a

detailed monthly report package, including operating statistics, Example “Management Agreement
revenue summaries, expenses summaries, budget variance Operated” Programs
reports, etc. The management agreement requires additional e Cityof Raloiph NG

personnel time for the owning entity’s staff since it is necessary to .

audit the gross parking revenues as well as the monthly operating » Cityof Lincoln, NL

expenses. The preferred arrangement is that all reporting S Gy Tt 1

guidelines and accounting practices are determined up-front so
that each party understands their responsibilities.

The owning entity’s stakeholders and staff will have significant input into establishing the “level of service” for
the parking system by deciding on the type of parking access and revenue control systems to be employed, the
quantity of cashiers/customer service ambassadors, acceptable traffic queuing upon exit, lost ticket/insufficient
funds policies, parking related services offered {lost vehicle assistance, dead battery assistance, vehicle lock-out

assistance), etc.

The following outlines the potential advantages of outsourced day-to-day operations via management
agreement (in conjunction with a small in-house contract management function):

e Reasonable control over day-to-day parking operations.

e An internal parking manager can be hired by the city with sufficient parking knowledge to assist with
future planning.

e A well-structured management agreement will provide the following:

Downtown Study Area 116



DURHAM

I ' City of Durham Downtown Study Area
1869 Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

o Reasonable control over staff and staff training

o High customer service expectations

o A high level of staff appearance

o Strong auditing capabilities

o Operator accountability
* Parking services from an experienced service provider.
e Typically, operations are less expensive due to:

o Lower staffing costs

o Lower training costs

o Lower administrative costs

o Lower insurance costs since some risk and liability is shed to the parking operator
* The use of a private parking operator will provide on-going valuable parking experience to the City.

* Potentially, a large pool of qualified private operator staff to draw from for sick day and employee
vacations.

* The contracted parking operator will deal with most customer complaints.
¢ Relatively predictable parking system expenses.
Disadvantages to this approach include:

¢ The city will have to compensate a private operator with a management fee or a percentage of gross
revenues.

* Somewhat |ess control over day-to-day operations.

* Somewhat less control over staffing and training issues.

s The city will need to find and hire an experienced parking manager.

¢ The city will continue to have some administrative and back office staffing costs.

* The city will assume most of the financial risks related with the parking system.

Concession Agreement Operations

With a concession agreement, the concessionaire will provide all
necessary labor and services for the complete operation of parking Example “Concession Agrecment
facilities in return for a percentage of the gross parking revenues. Operated” Programs

The actual percentage varies from operation to operation based
on the size, complexity, revenue potential, and perceived risk to
the operator. There may be a guaranteed minimum annual
payment to the owning entity. Sometimes a revenue split is s Soveral Arports
negotiated for revenues above a certain level,

« Children’s Modical Center,

Dallas, TX

In general, concession agreements work best in situations where the owning entity wishes to divest itse!f from
the day-to-day parking operational concerns in order to better focus on its core business. These types of

Downtown Study Area 117



IH City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study ~ [MIANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

1869
" o

salini i

arrangements are more common in airports. With this type of agreement, a minimal amount of time is required
by the owning entity’s staff in the day-to-day operations of the parking program. The owning entity also
relinquishes some level of control as it relates to defining day-to-day operations since the concessionaire is
responsible for all expenses and most liabilities. Typically, the owning entity receives a deposit from monthly
parking revenues within two weeks after the end of the each calendar month. Periodic conversations with the
parking operator are necessary to discuss operational issues that affect the quality of service to the owning
entity’s patrons,

The concession agreement is the simplest type of agreement for administrative purposes, in that only the gross
parking revenues need be audited. All operational expenses are the responsibility of the concessionaire,
thereby resulting in minimal control of this function by owning entity staff. Also, as with the management
agreement, the parking operator serves as a buffer to the owning entity’s management with respect to parking
complaints and potential wrongdaing by those employed within the parking system. -

While there are benefits to this approach, the risks tend to outweigh those benefits for the City in particular. It
is recommended is this report that the City builds a parking brand that is recognized as a well-managed, well-
maintained organization. Entering into a concession agreement with an operator and taking a more hands-off
approach poses risks to the desired outcome of developing a positive parking brand identity within Durham.

Potential advantages of concession style leasing of parking facilities include the following:

e No real parking operations or management required by the city.

* No substantial daily auditing required by the city.

¢ Facilities will be leased to an experienced parking services provider.

¢ Requires no internal parking experience on the part of the city.

e Relatively predictable revenue stream.

e Less operations related financial risk.

e Parking operator takes all significant parking customer complaints.
Disadvantages to this approach would include:

» Little to no control over day-to-day parking operations.

e No control over staffing and training issues.

e Less customer service accountability.

» Difficult to measure parking system expenses, if the parking operator is required to share them at all.

¢ If not specifically addressed in the contract agreement, the parking operator may be encouraged to
reduce facility expenses to a minimum level to increase profit that can negatively Impact customer
service.

Effective Parking System Organizational Options

Parking System Organization and Management

As the parking profession has evolved, several very effective parking system organizational models have
emerged. Each of these models has its own strengths and weakness depending on several factors including the

Downtown Study Area 118



DURHAM

IH City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study  [MJANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

1887,
parking system'’s size, degree of development, programs offered, political landscape, community goals, etc. The
seven most successful and commonly used organizational models are:

* A Consolidated (“vertically integrated”) City Department model
» The Parking Authority model

» The “Contract” or Business District model

® The Parking District or Commission model

* The Professional Services model

* The Parking Management Collaborative Approach

¢ The “Eco District” model

Of course, there are several variations and hybrids of these models, but these are the seven primary alternatives
commonly seen across the country. Each of these models will be examined in more depth in the following
sections, but they all have one common factor that contributes to thelr success — they all address the major
problem associated with the “horizontally fragmented” system structures previously described.

When evaluating which organizational option will work best in a specific community, It is important to ask
community stakeholders to create a prioritized set of evaluation criteria. A typical list of criteria that we employ
includes determining which organizational option:

s  Best supports economic development

* Best reflects the functional characteristics of the community
* |s most efficient/cost effective

e [s most customer-friendly

® |s most politically feasible

* |s most focused on the vision

¢ |[seasiest to achieve

* Is most responsive to businesses and stakeholders

¢ |s most financially viable

® Provides the most effective coordination

The following is a brief description of parking system organizational models that have shown demonstrated
success in recent years. Each description is illustrated by an example of a specific program based on that model.

Consoildated (“Vertically Integrated”) City Department Model

A Consolidated and "Vertically Integrated” City Department Model is essentially structured like a typical
department lead by a department director head and consisting of a varying assortment of support staff, The
defining characteristic of this model is that the department director has complete authority and responsibility
for the management of all parking related program elements. The primary elements of these being:

s Off-street parking facilities and maintenance

e  On-street parking resources

Downtown Study Area 119



DURHAM

II City of Durham Downtown Study Area
1gey Comprehensive Parking Study  IMANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

s Residential permit parking programs
e Overall program financial performance
e Parking system planning (e.g., zoning, financial planning, and new construction)
o Parking enforcement
There are numerous other related areas that can be included:

¢ Transportation demand management (Trip Reduction Programs, Preferential Parking for Car/Van Pools,
transit programs, etc.)

e Parking system branding, marketing, and community outreach
¢ |mplementation of new technologies
s Interface with downtown development and economic development

Another important trend related to this model is that even if
parking is kept within the City government structure, it is being
housed in new locations. In the past, parking was often located
under Public Works, Transportation, or similar departments. In
the past decade the trend has been to locate parking
management under Community or Economic Development,
Urban Renewal, or similar departments. This is due to the
growing appreciation of the importance of parking as a tool for
economic development.

The City of Fort Collins, CO has a consolidated parking

management program that incorporates off-street parking (parking structures and surface lots), on-street
parking {time limited on-street spaces), and parking enforcement. All parking functions are self-managed using
city staff positions. The city’s Parking Manager also has developed a program to promote effective coordination
and collaboration with the owners of private parking to better support evening restaurant parking demands and
for special events.

Another feature arising from this integrated approach is that the
city has recently embarked on a parking technology assessment. A
key feature of this assessment was to identify technology options
that could link on-street/enforcement systerns (Auto-Vu License
Plate Recognition enforcement technology/T-2 systems software)
with the next generation of off-street parking equipment and
potentially new on-street multi-space meters. This type of creative
and integrated thinking is more common in systems with a
vertically integrated organizational structure, as the responsibility
for all areas affected are of the single City department, rather than
having multiple departments with differing levels of interest.

We have identified an emerging trend in municipalities that are reorganizing their approach to parking, but
maintaining parking as a city department function. Many of these cities are adopting the vertical integration
principals and organizationally consolidating all parking function in the economic development division as
opposed to the more traditional transportation or public works divisions.

Downtown Study Area 120



DURHAM
City of Durham Downtown Study Area

Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

e 6wyt

in 2011 the City of Fort Collins embarked on an update to their Strategic Parking Plan. One of the outcomes of
this revised parking plan was to consider modifying their program organizational model from a unified city
department mode! to a “Parking District or Commission” model. One reason for this is the possibility of
reestablishing on-street paid parking after a 20-year absence. The greater business community engagement in
regards to creating and implementing parking policy through the Parking Commission Board of Directors is a key

consideration.

Through the Strategic Plan study process many business leaders, downtown management and City Councilors
have seen both the henefits of this significant policy shift and how a new organizational framework can be
useful in moving the program forward. However, these major structural changes are always somewhat
controversial and need to be carefully managed. Whether to move forward with this reorganization is still

unfolding in Fort Collins.
The Parking Authority Model

Parking authorities typically operate with a small staff and engage a private parking management firm to handle
day-to-day operations. One advantage of the Parking Authority model, especially in a municipal setting, is that it
puts all the major parties at the same table via a parking authority board or commission. This helps key
stakeholders gain a deeper appreciation for the complexities of parking and the often competing/conflicting
agendas between various constituent groups.

The defining characteristics of a Parking Autharity Model include;
e It has a defined mission and vision
e |tis governed by a detailed management agreement and Is self-funded
e Often has bonding capability

o Most often has responsibility for all aspects of parking operations (off-street, on-street, and
enforcement, including rate adjustments)

e Most often has responsibility for off-street parking facility ownership, planning, construction, and
maintenance

e Itis typically headed by a President or Executive Director

o Because of this they tend to attract the highest caliber parking management personnel

s The President or Executive Director reports ta a board (typically 7- 15
members)

o The board is comprised of influential and invested downtown
stakeholders

o Board compaosition typically includes:
=  High level city staff
&= Mayor or City Manager {or appointee)
* Director of Finance
»  Director of Public Works
= Property owners/developers

=  Downtown association members

Downtown Study Area 121



DURHAM

IH City of Durham Downtown Study Area
\se9 Comprehensive Parking Study  [MIANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

» Chamber of Commerce representative
= Large downtown employers

Although the authority may not control all of the parking in a downtown area, that does not mean they cannot
affect the entire downtown. Both Toledo, OH {the Downtown Toledo Parking Authority or DTPA) and Winnipeg,
Manitoba {the Winnipeg Parking Authority) dramatically transformed their operations that all the other private
parking operations had little choice but to follow suit. Now virtually all downtown parking facilities have
attendants in new uniforms, customer service training for front-line staff, parking structure interiors are painted
white, new customer friendly parking technologies and programs are being installed/instituted — all following
the local parking authority's lead. We call this the “high tide raises all boats” phenomenon.

The “Contract” or Business District Model

In a surprising number of communities across the United States,
downtown business improvement districts or downtown
development authorities are taking operational responsibility for
parking. Similar to the Parking Authority Model, the Contract or
Business District Model is governed by a well-defined operating
agreement that sets specific expectations and limits on the use of
parking assets, including parking policy, parking rate adjustments,
etc. These contracts or operating agreements typically must be
reauthorized every 3 — 5 years based on whether the defined
contract goals were met. If reauthorized, it is common for new
goals and program objectives to be set for the next contract period. E
This is the fastest growing and most successful of all the parking organizational models in the past 10 years. One
key reason for this is that these agencies are typically better in touch with the strategic goals of the communities
and often have skill sets that many parking programs lack (community engagement, strategic planning, etc.)

In Boise, ID the off-street parking program is professionally managed by the Capital City Development
Corporation, the city’s urban renewal agency. Through the aggressive use of tax increment financing combined
with a strategy of leading other desired development with parking infrastructure investment, Downtown Boise
has become a national model of downtown community development

| and resurgence.

Another example of this made! can be found in Tempe, AZ, The City of
Tempe does not own any significant parking facilities, and only a few
small surface parking lots. The need for a coordinated parking system
solution to provide a more user friendly experience for visitors drove the
downtown organization, the Downtown Tempe Community, Inc. (DTC),
to create what amounts to a “parking management overlay program.”
Working with the owners of the off-street parking assets, they created a
N parking system management plan. Through creative signage, a common
parking validation program, and extensive marketing, the DTC branded
the parking system to such an extent that it appears that Tempe has a
well-managed and comprehensive parking program, although they do
» not own any of the individual assets. DTC acts, in essence, as a private
" parking management firm operating a collection of city assets and
private off-street facilities as a combined system. They manage all
parking staff and programs themselves, and return all profits to the
facility owners keeping a modest management fee. The DTC also

Downtawn Study Area 122



DURHAM

I! City of Durham Downtown Study Area
\gee CoOmprehensive Parking Study  [MJANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

69

manages the city's on-street parking resources and reinvests on-street parking revenues back into the
downtown district.

The Parking District or Commission Mode!

The Parking District Model is slightly different than the previously defined model, but as mentioned earlier, the
common element of all of these successful madels is the goal of a creating a “comprehensive parking
management function” under the control of one managing entity (vertical integration).

The characteristics of a parking district or commission include:
» They typically have a defined area with set baundaries.
* They may have a special property assessment that applies to all properties within the district.

o This revenue generally goes toward defined district improvements, but can be restricted to
parking or transportation related projects.

* They may have a “Parking In-Lieu of Property Tax” {PILOT) program. In lieu of having a parking
requirement for new development, developers instead pay a fee-in-lieu of parking development. This
fee is generally calculated on a per stall basis and goes to the parking district for strategic investment in
district parking needs (new parking additions, technology upgrades, transportation alternatives, etc.).

® They are generally run by an Executive Director or President (although some are run by City department
heads).

* All revenues are collected and managed by the district for reinvestment in the parking program and the
district.

o In some cases, if revenues exceed operational or capital program needs, a percentage of the
additional funds are returned to the City's General Fund.

o In other cases, the City assesses the district a fee based on a percentage of net revenues in-lieu
of not assessing property taxes on the parking facilities. This money goes to the City’s General
Fund.

¢ Revenue sources typically include:
o Special assessment revenue (if applicable)
o Off-street parking revenue

* May include miscellaneous revenue sources such as: advertising (in parking structures),
vending machines or retail space rental {mixed-use parking facilities)

® May also include special event parking revenue
o On-street parking revenue
o Parking enforcement revenue

Parking Districts have made significant contributions to the communities they serve. For example, in Boulder,
CO, the Downtown and University Hill Management District/Parking Services can boast the following list of
accomplishments all paid for with parking district revenues:

* Funding of the Eco-Pass Program — Over $800,000 per year

Downtown Study Area 123



DURHAM

I! City of Durham Downtown Study Area
1869 Comprehensive Parking Study  MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

o This program gives all downtown
employees a free bus pass and contributes
to a 62% mode split among downtown
employees (reducing parking demand).

*» Repayment of a $3.4 million Pearl Street Mall
Improvement Bond - $500,000/year

o This is a good example of the parking
program contributing to community
economic development.

J ‘
|

it

o Payment of Parking Structure Debt Service
Obligations

W : : ]
o Parking district revenues fund the development costs of downtown public parking structures as
well as all parking operating and maintenance costs.

o One of the more impressive parts of this program has been the leadership in defining
appropriate design guidelines for parking structures.

*  Only mixed-use structures are permitted.

=  They must incorporate street level retail and be architecturally consistent with the
downtown fabric. Some have been multi-modal in nature, integrating transit functions
with parking.

The Professional Services Model

A more recently developed organizational model is the “Professional Services” model. In this model, a smaller
more professional level parking services group is developed in conjunction with the outsourcing of day-to-day
operations. While there are many potential variations under this category, the most successful variation
involves a core team that is primarily administrative in nature.

The management group is responsible for program elements such as creating the vision and mission of the
program, community outreach and program development (including assessment of new technologies, etc.),
parking system planning, interface with economic development programs, interface with transportation system
functions (including alternative transportation programs), contract administration, parking facility long-term
maintenance program development, system financial administration/audit functions, and special projects
management.

Day-to-day parking operations are outsourced to a qualified parking management firm. Their responsibilities
would typically include off-street parking facility operations {cashiering services, pay-on-foot operations, etc.),
daily facilities maintenance, security, etc. Some communities have extended these contract services to include
the operation of on-street parking and parking enforcement programs including citation collections and
management. Far on-street and enforcement operations meter maintenance and collections, citation issuance,
collections, and adjudication can all be outsourced as well.

Another feature often used in conjunction with the Professional Services Model is the development of “on-call
services agreements” for various types of consulting and professional services such as engineering facility
condition appraisals, technology assessments, strategic planning, revenue control system assessments and
audits, etc.

Downtown Study Area 124



I ! City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

The primary advantages of this model are that parking is
managed by & lean group of professional level
management staff focused on key areas such as:

s Program Administration and Finance
# Audit/Revenue Control

e Contract Administration

e Special Projects

s  Marketing/Branding/Communications

e Economic Development/Customer
Satisfaction/Business Community Interface

Day-to-day operations are outsourced. This can have the effect of keeping 2 better focus on the strategic goals
of the parking program without getting mired in the many operational issues that make up day-to-day
management.

Communities beginning to implement this approach include the City of Beverly Hills, CA and the City of Lincoln,
NE.

The Parking Management Collaborative Approach

This approach was developed specifically to address the set of conditions that exist in communities that have
chosen not to develop a significant off-street public parking system, such as the City of Charlotte, North
Carolina, and therefore do not have much ability to influence the off-street parking market in traditional ways.
This model also could apply to those communities that choose to divest themselves of the facilities that they
have previously developed.

The Parking Management Collaborative approach is comprised of the following basic tenets:

e There is a demonstrated need to improve the ease of use and access to parking in the downtown,
especially for occasional visitars.

s There is recognition that a comprehensive approach that will coordinate and integrate both on-street
parking and off-street parking assets is needed to make the downtown more visitor-friendly.

e On-street parking assets will be better managed as a short-term parking resource with the primary
management goal being to promote a high degree of turnover for the benefit of merchants and
businesses that depend an an effectively managed supply of convenient short-term parking resources.
A goal of maintaining an average on-street occupancy level of approximately 85% is a key program
goal/benchmark.

e Because the majority of off-street parking in the downtown is privately owned and operated, a
collaborative approach to developing a downtown parking management strategy is needed. The
primary objective of this approach is to develop what is essentially a “parking management program
overlay” to create a well-coordinated and marketed user-friendly parking system that will appear to the
casual user as a public parking program.

o The key functional elements of this parking management overlay include:
=  Program branding and marketing

» A comprehensive updated downtown parking and wayfinding program

Downtown Study Area 125



|! City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

= A central parking and transportation information clearinghouse function
» A special event coordination function

»  Asignificant parking and transportation planning function

= Coordination with community and economic development activities

=  Management of City owned parking assets

& Coordination with downtown management in support of downtown business needs

= The Parking Management Collaborative will strive to promote superior, customer oriented parking
programs and parking facility standards.

* Parking planning and coordination will be important functions related to understanding and responding
to both the current and future parking needs of downtown users.

* The diverse needs of various user groups will be considered, including visitars, employees, employers,
property owners, and parking management firms, through active planning, coordination and
communications.

s The Parking Management Collaborative will be considered an integral component of the community's
economic development strategies and programs.

This approach needs only a small, but highly effective staff
to be successful. The recruitment of an executive caliber
program director with strong vision and excellent
communication skills is essential for this strategy to
succeed. The other key ingredient is to get buy-in from
major parking property owners. This is typically
accomplished by recruiting them to be on the program'’s
Board of Directors. In some cases where all the right
individuals are already on the board of an existing
downtown organization (especially if creating “vet
another board” would be seen as an issue) this function
could beceme an initiative of that organization.

One of the key values of having the major parking property owners engaged at this level is that this will lead
them to directing the parking management firms they hire to “get on-board” with this program. Engaging the
parking management firms on another level also can be very valuable because of their detailed knowledge of
conditions “on the street” and their knowledge of parking management principles in general.

= T \

The first major city to employ this model is Charlotte, NC, where the collaborative was located, organizationally,
in the business improvement district known as the Charlotte City Center Partners

The “Eco District” Model

This is the newest model that is beginning to be adapted to have a parking/transportation program focus. Eco
District initiatives generally are comprehensive strategies to accelerate sustainable community or neighborhood
development. The value proposition includes defining performance areas and outlining an implementation
strategy as it relates to integrating sustainability goals as a defining element in the parking and transportation
program organizational framework.

Downtown Study Area 126



DURHAM

I! City of Durham Downtown Study Area
/888 Comprehensive Parking Study  IMANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

Eco Districts commit to achieving ambitious sustainability performance goals, guiding district investments and
community action, and tracking the results over time.

A parking and transportation Eco District approach would recognize technologies and strategies for enhancing
district sustainability, such as energy and water management systems within parking developments, support for
green streets, the promotion of resource conservation, etc. They also may prioritize LEED® certification for
applicable projects or Green Parking Council certification for the program overall.

In this case, since parking can be a significant revenue source, we envision parking revenues being dedicated
first to supporting parking program operations, maintenance reserves, and technology upgrades. Once the
parking program is well established and generating excess revenues, these resources would be invested In a
variety of sustainability initiatives. Examples might include programs such as:

e Community bike programs - to support an overall “Park Once Strategy”
e (Carsharing programs — to support downtown residential development
¢ Pervious pavement installation and bio-swales as demonstration projects in city surface parking lots

It should be noted that the widespread deployment of these strategies has been slow to develop due to lack of
comprehensive assessment tools, scalable project capital, and public policy support. The Eco Districts Initiative
focuses on removing these implementation barriers and creating an enabling strategy to accelerate community-
scale sustainability.

Generally, the Eco Districts approach brings together community stakeholders, property developers, utilities,
and the District to solidify a shared sense of purpose and partnership through the following actions:

e Create an engagement and governance strategy to build community support, set priorities, and act

e Develop an assessment and management toolkit to guide project development and track ongoing
performance

s Implement sustainability projects through technical and economic feasibility analysis, assembly of
project financing, and establishment of public/private partnerships

* |dentify commercialization opportunities for companies to test promising products and practices
e Establish municipal policy and regulatory structures to support Eco District development

In this specific application, the general goals above still apply. However, because of our focus on parking and
transportation functions, there will be some variation and more specific applications. The broad-based nature
of parking and transportation, the need for on-going stakeholder engagement, and the larger economic
development focus makes this application very appealing. Overall, transportation accounts for about 30% of the
nation’s carbon footprint. Organizing your parking program to have an explicit “eco-district” orientation would
send a strong signal of the community’s commitment to environmental progress.

Parking System Monetization

Parking program “monetization,” also is sometimes referred to as “Public/Private Partnerships” {PPPs) and also
is sometimes confused with the more general term “Concession Agreement.” The key differentiating factor that
makes monetization different is a large upfront payment in exchange for an extended concession or lease style
agreement {usually in the 35 — 75 year time frame), with significant finance and other fees applied over the term
of the lease. This assessment of parking monetization will consider the following subsections:

o Legal Authority to Monetize Parking

Downtown Study Area 127



DURHAM

I H City of Durham Downtown Study Area
1Bao.

Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

e Parking Monetization Overview

Legal Authority to Monetize Parking

The North Carolina General Statutes were reviewed to ascertain what authority is provided for cities in North
Carolina by the General Statutes regarding outsourcing and financing of parking operations, with particular
attention to the potential of monetizing the City’s parking assets.

The following sections of the General Statutes were found to address a City's authority as it relates to parking:
Article 12 - Sale and Disposition of Property (G.S. 160A, Sections 265- 280)
® Article 15 - Streets, Traffic and Parking (G.S. 1604, Sections 301 - 302)

=  Article 16 - Public Enterprise (G.S. 160A, Section 321)

* Article 19 - Planning and Regulation of Development (G.S. 160A, Section 458.3)

s  Article 24 — Parking Authorities {G.S. 160A, Sections 550 — 565)
The following sections discuss each of the General Statutes as it relates to parking and the City’s authority.
Article 12 - Sale and Disposition of Property

Article 12 grants a City broad power to dispose of property and to enter into leases. This article could be used as
the basis to sell, or privatize an existing parking facility; either a parking lot or garage. The Article does not allow
for a private or negotiated sale of real property valued over $30,000. A disposition of property valued at greater
than $30,000 may occur by one of the following methods:

* Advertisement for sealed bids
¢ Negotiated offer, advertisement, and upset bid
e Publicauction
e Exchange
Section 272 of G.S. 160A allows a City to lease property, but sets a maximum lease period of 10 years.

Article 12 would allow the City to either sell existing off-street parking facilities, or to lease them to an outside
party. However, the lease term could not exceed more than 10 years.

Article 15 - Streets, Traffic and Parking

Sections 301 and 302 of G.5. 160A establish a City’s authority to operate on- and off-street parking facilities.
These sections define the City’s ability to install parking meters for on-street parking spaces and to charge a fee
for off-street parking. These sections also establish limitations on how revenues from parking may be used;
essentially for the enforcement, administration of the parking system and for payment of bonds issued for
construction.

Article 15 sections are silent on the issues of privatization, but it does Include language that provides the City the
authority to charge fees for parking. It also places limitations on the use of parking revenues.

Downtown Study Area 128



I! City of Durham _ Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study  MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

a2

Article 16 - Public Enterprise {G.S. 160A, Section 321)

Section 321 of Article 16 allows a City to sell or lease any enterprise “upon any terms or conditions the council
may deem best.”” This clause grants the City wide discretion to sell or lease the identified public enterprises.
This section does require the sale or lease of most public enterprises be subject to voter approval. However, the
sale or lease of a parking facility or system is expressly exempted from requiring voter approval.

Article 16 would allow a City the authority to sell a parking garage without voter approval.
Article 19 - Planning and Regulation of Development

Section 458.3 Downtown development project - specifically identifies parking garages as a permissible type of
downtown development project. This section discusses the requirements regarding the construction of public -
private agreements in downtown development projects.

Article 19 is not germane to the discussion about privatization of parking per se, but it was believed to be a
potential useful section of which to be aware.

Article 24 - Parking Authorities

Section 550 allows Cities the authority to establish @ Parking Authority. The powers and purpose of a parking
authority by Statute are as follows:

“An authority incorporated under this Article shall constitute a public body and a body corporate
and politic, exercising public powers as an agency or instrumentality of the city with which it is
coterminous. The purpose of the authority shall be to relieve traffic congestion of the streets and
public places in the city by means of parking facilities, and to that end to acquire, construct,
improve, operate and maintain one or more parking projects In the city. "

This statute allows a parking authority many of the powers of a City Including the following:
* The right to acquire property
¢ The right to construct buildings
* Therightto construct, reconstruct, improve, maintain and operate parking projects
* The right to assess fees for parking
* The right to accept grants and loans
e Theright toissue revenue bonds

A Parking Authority may acquire property by conveyance from the City, by direct purchase or by condemnation.
(G.S 160A-557).

General Statute 160A-557c allows the City to convey public street rights-of-way to a Parking Authority to allow
the Authority to install parking meters. (Italics added for emphasis.)
“Contracts may be entered into between the city and the authority providing for the property to
be conveyed by the city to the authority, the additional property to be acquired by the city and so
conveyed, the streets, roads, parkways, avenues and highways to be closed by the city, and the
amounts, terms and conditions of payment to be made by the authority. Such contracts may

” North Carolina General Statute, 160A-32, Sale, lease, or discontinuance of city-owned enterprise
® Ibid 160A-556. Purpose and powers of the authority

Downtown Study Area 129



DURHAM

IH City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

1869

Ll e ol

contain covenants by the city as to the road, street, parkway, avenue and highway improvements
to be made by the city, including provisions for the installation of parking meters in designated
streets of the city and for the removal of such parking meters in the event that such parking meters
are not found to be necessary or convenient. Any such contract may pledge all or any port of the
revenues of on-street parking meters to the authority for a period of not to exceed the period
during which bonds of the authority shall be outstanding; provided, that the total amount of such
revenues which may be paid pursuant to such a pledge shall not exceed the total of the principal of
and interest on such bonds which become due and payable during such period. Such contracts may
also contain provisions limiting or prohibiting the construction and operation by the city or any
agency thereof in designated areas of public parking facilities and parking meters whether or not a
fee or charge is made therefor. Any such contracts between the city and the authority may be
pledged by the authority to secure its bonds and may not be modified thereafter except as
provided by the terms of the contracts or by the terms of the pledge. The city council may
authorize such contracts on behalf of the city and no other authorization on the part of the city for
such contracts shall be necessary.

Section 550 of G.S. 160A permits a City to establish a Parking Authority to manage parking within the limits of a
City. While a separate entity, the Authority is not a private operator, but is a quasi-governmental agency. This
statute allows a City to convey to a parking authority the right to use the revenue from on-street parking to pay
for bonds issued by the authority (presumably to pay debt incurred to construct or acquire off-street parking
facilities), though the statute is silent with regard to what type of bonds on-street parking revenue may be used
to pay.

Summary

Based on our review, a City may sell or lease a parking facility (garage or surface lot) to a private party and in
effect, monetize that parking asset.

The City may turn over the management and operation of the parking system to a Parking Authaority.

However, the treatment of on-street parking assets presents the challenge with monetizing a parking system.
The effective management of a parking system consists of managing the on-street and off-street assets as a
unified system. Pricing and operation policies (such as lower prices for parking in garages and “first hour free” in
parking garages) need to be coordinated between the on-street and off-street systems.

The Statutes do not address how on-street parking could be sold or leased to a third party. In North Carolina,
Cities only have the authority expressly provided to them by the General Assembly. if the City wishes to pursue
the monetization of the parking system (including on-street resources), the City may want to consider seeking
enabling legislation from the General Assembly for this action.

The above review was conducted based on our experience as licensed professional engineers in the State of
North Carolina familiar with traffic and parking issues. Prior to proceeding with further potential monetization
of the City’s parking assets, it is recommended the City Attorney review these statutes and provide the Parking
Study Team and the Department of Transportation with a legal opinion regarding this activity.

Parking Monetization Overview

In the last few years, this concept has attracted more interest as many cities, counties, and states face deep
budget deficits. As a result, there has been an extensive amount of study and commentary on this trend. The

Downtown Study Area 130



II City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

889,
U.5. Government Accountability Office (GAD), the Public Interest
Research Group (PIRG) and state legislatures have issued
comprehensive reports on the subject. The Texas State Legislature City of Chicago Off-Street
recently released an extensive report on monetizing toll road
projects, and the Federal Highway Administration examined
monetization in other countries. The various reports and studies Ohio State University

highlight the basics of best practices for asset monetization.

Parking Maonetization Examples

City of Chicago On-Street

City of Indianapolis On-Streat

Seme of the most insightful analysis of these practices has come
from Stephen Goldsmith. Mr. Goldsmith, a former mayor of
Indiznapolis, is director of the Innovations in American Government Program at the Harvard Kennedy School. He
is author of the book The Power of Social Innovation: How Civic Entrepreneurs Ignite Community Networks for
Good. Many of his insights are included in the summary of “good asset monetization goals and key issues”
below.

Monetization Goals and Keys Issues

Using Chicago or similar examples as the context (where the City’s on-street parking operation was leased to a
partnership for a significant upfront payment in exchange for a very long-term lease) Stephen Goldsmith offered
the following examples of good program monetization goals & key issues to be considered:

Identifying non-core functions and areas that are not core competencies

If parking management is not a core competency of the City then it is a candidate for privatization;
however, if you are lucky enough to have a high functioning parking system that is providing excellent
service and is contributing to community growth and development, think twice about what you may be

giving up. |

Establishing a long-term reserve fund to:

*  Enhance City credit rating and thus lower interest rates
Chicago did this and enjoyed its highest credit rating since 1978

* Retire debt
* Eliminate interest payments and thereby create more money for community reinvestment

2 - Chicago retired 5925 million in debt
= Community reinvestment
Identify and fund a well-defined set of community desired or essential infrastructure projects
Programs that serve the public good
* Example: Neighborhood parks and programs
Chicago invested more than $325 million in this area
Infrastructure investments that will stimulate additional private sector investments
= Example: Parking structures as part of a public/private partnership.

Downtown Study Area 131



DURHAM

I H City of Durham Downtown Study Area

18469

Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

S

4

a

7

Look at Alternative Solutions to Budget Problems

Do not include lease proceeds in a government budget befare the leases are finalized

Shifting Risk

Consider the following potential risks of managing on-street metered parking for the next 75 years
{imagine bidding on the City’s horseshoeing concession in 1890, or the public pay phone in 1975)
* Changing technologies
s Utilization
= (Costs
Rising labor and fuel costs
Equipment replacement

* In Chicago, the cost of replacing the multi-space meters every 7 years is estimated at
$40 - 50 million dollars.

Carefully analyze the term of any potential concession

Both the Chicago Inspector General's analysis and financial experts who have analyzed the deal indicate !
that Chicago should have negotiated a shorter lease period. Under their analysis, Chicago left significant
future earnings on the table when it agreed to a 75 year concession term {estimated at $1.3 - 2.1 billion).

Chicago became the poster child for using the proceeds of PPP asset leases to plug a budget operating
deficit and “selling its residents’ future.”

In 2006 the city sold the Chicago Skyway for $1.83 billion, of which $460 million was used to pay off debt,
$375 million was used to close the 2006 operating budget gap, and $500 million was placed in a ralny day
fund. The $500 million rainy day fund was exhausted to close operating budget gaps in years 2007 and
2008.

Key elements of a monetization deal are transparency, expertise and setting controls over rates and

“windfall profits”

Allow elected officials to approve the terms of any proposed agreement before it is put out to bid.

Don’t let the market/bidders solely dictate the terms of the monetization through a request for proposal
process. Elected officials should have the power to alter the terms of the proposed deal as they see fit
and drive the process through negotiation rather than have a fait accompli handed to them.

The Texas State Legislature’s recent report on monetization advocated revenue sharing over single,
upfront payments as a better way to protect the public interest. The report also noted that key elements
of a monetization deal are transparency, expertise and setting controls over rates and "windfall profits.”

Having a budget balanced on the back of lease proceeds makes it extremely difficult for officials to reject
an asset lease or concession deal. Consider adopting an ordinance prohibiting a city's budget from
including revenue fram monetization proceeds before commissioners have approved the deal.

Downtown Study Area 132



II City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study ~ MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

Consider the creation of a Concession or Manetization Management Review Board

The impact of these deals will affect a broad array of citizens, civic and cultural organizations, religious
and educational institutions and corporations. These are individuals and businesses that are invested in
their communities and deserve a voice as well as an open and transparent process.

if a parking program monetization strategy is pursued, consider the creation of a Downtown Parking
Management Commission

9 The Downtown Parking Management Commission could be made up of City, parking management entity
and downtown stakeholders and should require the concessioner to be engaged with Downtown Parking
Management Commission. The Parking Commission would provide an annual program assessment to
City Council.

Term of the Agreement

*  Limit to 30 -50years

»  PBuild in a mechanism to address changes in annual expectations

= Establish a defined monitoring process

1 0 » Create a process to generate an Annual Stakeholder Report Card

-~ If the deal were to “go sour” have a plan for “how to get out?” Who pays what to whom?
- Consider alternatives to a2 one-time only payment

5 Consider a lesser up-front payment with annual incremental payments to a dedicated parking
reinvestment fund.

For cities with a parking tax, could the parking tax constitute the annual incremental
payment?

Maintaining and improving service levels to users of the parking system

i From the perspective of parking customers and those invested in the downtown a strong, well-managed
parking system is critical to their success. The concessioner should ideally be a “partner for the success of
the downtown” and implement programs and policies to effectively address the following:

= Greater availability of parking spaces

= More convenient, state of the art equipment, with multiple payment options

1 1 = Quicker service of broken equipment

On the positive side, in Chicago meters are now repaired within a couple of hours on average
compared to 2.5 days under the City run system

On the negative side, when the Chicago deal was initially implemented, meter rates were
tripled in some places before new meter technology was introduced. The concessionaire
literally could not empty the meters fast enough to keep them operational and patrons
began getting citations for non-payment because the meters were full of quarters,

= Abalanced approach to meet the needs of retail parking, employee parking, event parking, etc.

= Special programs to meet the needs of cultural, religious and civic institutions as well as
customized neighborhood programs.

Downtown Study Area 133



DURHAM

I! City of Durham Downtown Study Area
\see Comprehensive Parking Study  MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

12

13

14

Build on the “Partnership for Downtown Success”

Building on the “Partniership for Downtown Success” concept requires an understanding of the needs of
the business community, downtown residents and religious and cultural institutions. Once these needs
are understood, implementation of parking program enhancements should be introduced. This is where
the special expertise of a parking profession is needed. Programs to meet identified community needs

might include:

= Extended time limits near theaters, concert halls, schools and churches where parkers need more
than 2 hours

» Free or reduced rate parking for churches on Sunday mornings

«  Automatic ticket dismissal for inoperable meters, based on meter malfunction reports generated
by the system

»  Ability to pay citations on-line or even at a meter
* |mproved parking access and convenient parking for hourly parkers to support downtown retail

* Discounted monthly parking in certain lots

= Donated single space meters to protect bicycle parking or as vehicles for charitable donations

Sustainability and Innovation

Promote sustainable and innovative parking technologies and interior parking facility environment
enhancements

* Improved customer service features
=  Adopt “retail friendly” parking management best practices
= (Create safe, clean and friendly parking environments

* |nvest in sustainable design and management practices

Other issues to consider
*  Who will develop and manage new parking facilities?

*  Will the concessioner be allowed to manage competing facilities?

*  Where will rate setting authority reside?

Parking System Monetization - The Extreme Scenarios Comparison

The reasons for considering an asset monetization and a long-term concession agreement for a parking system
are easy to understand for cash strapped municipalities. Former Mayor Daley was allegedly quoted as saying
“Does it really matter who collects the quarters from the parking meters?”

This statement exemplifies the lack of understanding of parking as a profession and an appreciation for the
complexity and importance of 3 well-managed parking program. It also fails to consider the potential impacts on
the downtown community that needs an effective parking program to be successful.

Downtown Study Area 134



DURHAM

I! City of Durham Downtown Study Area
\ggo Comprehensive Parking Study  MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

Asset monetization or privatization is not inherently good or bad. The key issues are exactly how the deal is
structured and implemented. As with most things, the devil is in the details.

When considering how a monetization proposal effects downtown, we can frame the discussion by envisioning
two radically different possible scenarios.

Scenario #1

City parking assets are leased to the top bidder for a large sum of money over a particular number of years. The
successful bidder sees this as purely a business venture and they choose to manage the parking assets with a
“pure profit motivation.” The results of this approach plausibly include:

»  Parking rates are increased to whatever the market will bear.
= Facility maintenance is minimized or deferred.

= An automated parking management system is purchased on a low bid basis and routinely malfunctions,
creating regular frustration for parking patrons.

= Staffing levels are minimized to increase profits.

»  Every downtown event (parades, “Alive After Five” type events, etc.) become a “Compensation Event”
for the concessioner and because of budget constraints the City is unable or unwilling to compensate
the concessionaire and slowly downtown events become a memory.

» Parking facilities are used as vehicles for advertising but the ads are considered by many in the
community to be offensive.

= Opportunities to support charitable organizations and churches are dismissed out of hand because they
do not contribute to the “bottom line.”

=  Monitoring of supply vs. demand and planning for future community parking needs is neglected.
= As parking becomes more problematic, office building leases expire and are not renewed.

*  With no new public parking being planned and built, new development projects originally envisioned for
downtown go to the suburbs or another downtown.

In short, a disaster for the downtown for those who have invested in downtown and for every citizen that ends
up paying more for less service.

Scenario #2

Based on an open and collaborative process, the value and Importance of downtown parking is understood and
appreciated. Current and near-term community parking and access needs are identified and prioritized. A
program of agreed upon downtown parking investments, vetted through downtown stakeholders and City
administration Is funded by the proceeds of the monetization. A high level Parking Commission is established to
define standards for downtown parking safety, cleanliness, customer service, etc. The new parking
management entity (the concessionaire), wanting to be a good neighbor and recognizing that “this is just good
business,” is a willing partner in these Initiatives. A stronger and more vital downtown means more parking
customers for them. A program of approved downtown parking initiatives is authorized and includes:

*  The addition of new parking supply in areas that currently have parking deficits.

= The new parking facilities are leveraged with private partners to also provide new downtown residential
development and street level retail. The new mixed-use developments contribute positively to the
urban fabric of downtown.

Downtown Study Area 135



DURHAM

I! City of Durham Downtown Study Area
e Comprehensive Parking Study ~ [MIANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS
= New taxable assets are produced and the property values on the surrounding streets are enhanced.

New tax increment is generated providing additional reinvestment potential.

« The addition of an appropriate amount of additional public parking promotes the adaptive re-use, in-fill,
and preservation of older buildings.

=  These new investments in downtown create new jobs, new downtown residents, and ultimately, a
stronger and healthier downtown.,

Monetization Case Study: City of Pittsburgh

In 2010, Pittsburgh Mayor Luke Ravenstahl, having learned some lessons from the Chicago parking monetization
process, formed a Parking Advisory Committee to help guide the process for a parking system monetization

effort.
The central issue that the Mayor was trying to solve was not parking related at all.

The problem was the solvency of the City Pension Fund. Unless the fund could be stabilized for the foreseeable
future, the State was obligated to step in as the regulatory agency. The feeling was that the state would make
tough decisions such as raising rates, strictly on the basis of pension fund financing and that these decisions
could adversely impact the downtown economy and other community programs. The mayor wanted to avoid
this loss of control and authority.

His proposed solution was to monetize the Pittsburgh Parking System.
The Advisory Committee was charged with:
s« Evaluating how the transaction would affect the financial stability of the City
= Addressing the needs and concerns of relevant stakeholders and constituencies
» Formulating parameters for a successful process and resulting transaction
The Parking Advisory Committee developed nine guiding principles, covering the following topics:
1. The parking assets and economic health of the City
Transparency
Term of the Agreement

Parking rates

P

3

4

5. Adequate supply of parking spaces

6. Current employees and labor agreements

7. Future economic development

8. Minimum operating and maintenance standards
9. Continuing existence of the Authority

Parking Advisory Panel

In an attempt to provide an even more open public process, an “Advisory Panel Process” was funded by the
Pittsburgh Downtown Partnership under the auspices of the International Downtown Association and included
several parking professionals throughout the country. The purpose of the IDA Advisory Panel was to:

Downtown Study Area 136



DURHAM

}

City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study  MIANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

869
75 ©F i

OF wiiCrd

Provide more detailed analysis of operational/management possibilities based on the City of
Pittshurgh’s guiding principles and their potential impact on Downtown and city commercial districts.

Provide perspective and “lessons learned” from other parking system monetization efforts acrass the
United States.

Compare best practices and successful parking strategies employed by other cities, particularly with
regard to Downtown and commercial district office, residential, and retail development,

Prepare a framework to establish an effective parking management system to support further
Downtown and commercial district development.

The IDA Panel did not assess any of the alternative proposals and, therefore, could not make an
informed judgment as to their feasibility. The Panel focused on the Mayor's overall plan and how a
public/private partnership of the City's parking system might best benefit Pittsburgh’s businesses and
residents.

After an intensive series of individual and focus group meetings with downtown and neighborhood district
stakeholders, the following set of panel recommendations were put forth:

Centralized Parking Strategic Plan and Management

The Panel strongly urged the City to centralize parking related issues and develop an overall
strategic and operational plan with respect to parking for Pittsburgh’'s downtown and
neighborhood commercial districts.

An entity, perhaps Public Parking Authority of Pittsburgh (PPAP), a designated city department
or agency, or a new entity, should be empowered to undertake overall parking management in
Pittsburgh. In effect, create a “one-stop shop” that coordinates parking planning, policy, and
research.

Enforcement

The Panel recommended that the PPAP continue to provide enforcement for metered spaces
throughout the city and that enforcement be increased to:

*  Promote more turnover for on-street parking assets in the Downtown and commercial
districts where turnover will benefit merchants.

* Ensure that residential permit areas are functioning as intended, aliowing residents and
guests to find convenient on-street parking and discouraging others that use these
spaces illegally.

* Have sufficient cash flow to fund the ongoing operations of the PPAP.

The Panel recommended that enforcement revenues be used to deploy sufficient PPAP or
contract staff to ensure that meters and residential permit areas are properly and appropriately
enforced. The Panel further recommended that the City consider allowing a fallback provision
allowing the operator to issue parking tickets if PPAP is unzble to provide adequate
enforcement.

The Panel recommended that the investor/operator be required through the Concessionaire
Agreement to partner with government, other private interests, nonprofit organizations and
community development corporations (CDCs} to achieve overall community and economic
development goals of the City.

Downtown Study Area 137



DURHAM

I ! City of Durham Downtown Study Area
4.9

Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

* Rates

The Panel understood that rates will rise in order to provide the investor/operator with
sufficient revenue to improve the system while at the same time achieving the City goal of
funding the pension fund and paying off the Parking Authority’s bonded indebtedness.

Rate increases must be reasonable, geared to the existing market, known in advance, scaled up
over a period of five years, and geared to inflation (as determined by the Consumer Price Index)
thereafter.

The Panel recommended that rates should be fiexible, geared to location, time of day, and other
conditions or considerations. Any parking rate plan should be included in the Concession
Agreement with the private investor/operator so that stakeholders will have sufficient notice of
when rates are scheduled to change.

* Term of the Concessionaire Agreement

The Panel recommended that the term of any Concession Agreement be no longer than 50 years
but that an analysis of terms from 35 — SO years should be conducted. A shorter term might
benefit both the City and the investor/operator.

= Technology Enhancements

Panelists found that one of the expected benefits achieved through public private partnerships
is that the current parking system can become both more user-friendly and more effective in
generating revenue if new technologies are installed throughout the system. One technological
advance that can provide immediate benefits is the installation of multi-space meters. These
meters accept credit, debit, and smart cards in addition to cash. Pay-and-display meters allow
customers to use their purchased time at various locations. There is evidence that pay-and-
display meters also may allow more cars per block, though some dispute this advantage. These
systems also can be used in conjunction with pay-by-cell phone options to further enhance
customer service. Other technologies that may improve revenues include license plate
recognition systems and newer web-based parking management platforms. These systems also
have been shown to improve operating efficiency and effectiveness and produce better system
usage information leading to improved system management.

All potential investor/operators should be required to submit a plan for conversion from the
existing meter system to new technologies. Another industry best practice in this area is to have
a fully developed “new technology introduction plan” that includes advance public education,
effective signage, a media kit and rollout strategy highlighting the positive new features of the
equipment as well as information on how the new technology will be phased in, on-street “ask
me how” ambassadors, etc. A transition period for enforcement also is recommended whereby
only warning citations will be issued for a one or two week period following installation of the
new equipment.

The Panel recommended that the companies responding to the Request for Proposals be
required to outline their plans for introducing new technologies and describing how they intend
to deploy these technologies.

* Supply

The Panelists heard comments that indicated parking deficits in parts of Downtown, with
parking surpluses in other parts of Downtown. The Panel was provided anecdotal evidence that

Downtown 5Study Area 138



DURHAM

I City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

1889,
shortages exist in some communities (for example, in Shadyside and Squirrel Hill, and in the
South Side in the weekend/evening period). A critical element of any strategic parking plan that
is developed by the City will be careful monitoring of the supply of parking both in the
Downtown and in the city's neighborhood commercial districts. The City should not foreclose its
options to build new parking facilities should they be warranted.

As part of the monetization effort the city should conduct a detailed parking supply and demand
study and obtain from potential investor/operators strategies on how they expect to respond to
supply shortages, especially in Downtown, if shortages are found to exist.

Recognizing that supply is likely to be an issue for some time to come in Downtown and certain
business districts, the City should consider any lease proceeds in excess of the $300 million
required by the City needs for the pension fund and PPAP debt be earmarked first to address
supply issues. The Panel further suggested that the City perform a comprehensive parking
transportation strategic plan/needs assessment first so the City better understands parking
needs and create a prioritized action and investment plan.

= Community Impact

The Panel heard from several stakeholders concerns about the impact rate increases and policy
changes would have on churches, cultural and educational institutions, and community events.
The Panelists believe these concerns are real and should be addressed in the Concessionaire
Agreement. Specific recommendations include:

« Events - The impact of higher rates or restricted parking on both |arge and small events
can be considerable. There are a number of major festivals, parades and other events in
Downtown that either use an-street meter or parking lot locations for event activities
and/or that depend on people being able to find an inexpensive and convenient place to
park. Other events in community business districts can be impacted as well.

The Panel recommended that provisions for major events of this nature be
contained in the Concession Agreement.

= Retail — For retail businesses and restaurants, major increases in parking rates or lack of
availability of parking on lower floors can have a negative impact on their business.

The Panel recommended that private investor/operators be required to describe
ways they may be able to alleviate these concerns or preferably demonstrate how
they can develop or have developed programs that support and enhance the
success of retailers and restaurants in a Downtown environment.

* Free Sundays — Downtown churches in particular can be hurt if parking meters are
enforced on Sunday.

The Panel recommended that the current policy allowing free parking at metered
spaces and discounted rates in the two frequently used garages on Sundays be
continued.

*  Customer Services Enhancements

Experience has shown that rate increase abjections by the public are often mitigated by first
offering enhanced customer services. Panelists noted that many, if not most, public parking
systems offer little in the way of services that enhance the customer experience, yet parking is
essential to a retail business, serving one customer and his or her vehicle at a time.

Downtown Study Area 139



DURHAM

IH City of Durham Downtown Study Area
Comprehensive Parking Study MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

1869
v sl

Panelists recommend that the investor/operator be required to provide a package of new
customer services prior to or in conjunction with any rate increases.

» Operators should be asked to indicate what experience they have in terms of customer
services and amenities and which ones they see as feasible and desirable in Pittsburgh.
Another option can be to consider the development of parking customer service
amenities as a specific new duty for the PPAP to adopt. This can include services such as
vehicle lockout assistance, dead battery jump starts, vehicle location assistance, security
escorts, etc. The positive public relations generated from these services then accrue to
the City. These services can be funded by enhanced parking enforcement revenues.

a  Transition Plan

Panelists cautioned that transitioning from PPAP operational management to new private
investor/operator management is a pracess that should be carefully planned and phased in over
an appropriate period of time. One of the reasons Chicago’s difficulties seem to have occurred
was the rush to get new rates and policies on the street, often in advance of the new
technology.

The Panel recommended that potential bidders be required to present their transition plans
prior to final selection, and that these plans be considered in determining the winning bidder.

»  Customized Neighborhood Parking Plans

Interviewees from various neighborhoods met with panelists and pointed out the differences
between how parking policies, rates, supply, and management strategies can affect their
individual communities.

The Panel recommended that the investor/operator be required to meet with representatives of
business districts to develop customized neighborhood parking plans.

g Sustainability

As the panel reviewed the nine guiding principles set forth by the Parking Advisory Committee, a
tenth potential guiding principle was proposed - sustainability. Pittsburgh has acquired 2
national reputation for its efforts to create and support a sustainable city and a sustainable
Downtown.

The Panel recommended that respondents to the Request for Proposals outline plans to support
the City’s sustainability goals. Further, the Panel recommended that car-sharing programs, seen
as a support mechanism for Downtown residential development and as a “green” strategy, be
offered consideration for special rates and convenient reserved spaces including some on-street
spaces.

= Revenue Sharing

The Panel saw an opportunity to make use of any reserves that PPAP might have set aside, as
well as funds from the Agreement over and above what is necessary to fund the pension plan
and pay off PPAP bonded indebtedness in ways that will benefit the entire community and build
community support.

The Panel recommended that these funds be used to support development in Downtown and
community business districts in cooperation with other entities as appropriate. These funds also
can be used for non-parking projects that support community economic development. The new

Downtown Study Area 140



DURHAM

Il City of Durham Downtown Study Area
\ge9 Comprehensive Parking Study  IMIANAGEMENT ORGANIZATIONAL OPTIONS

operator will be given the opportunity to manage and operate any new parking facilities
developed as a result of this policy.

*  Fairness

The Panel observed that private parking operators all pay taxes and recommended in the
interest of fair competition that the new operator should pay local taxes at the same rates and
conditions as private operators.

Parking Monetization Summary

Since 2010, a few parking programs have moved forward with some form of monetization program.
Interestingly Pittsburgh was not one of them. In the end, Pittshurgh avoided the state takeover of the City
Pension Fund, by leveraging the Parking Authority Assets to generate the capital needed to shore up the pension
fund. Although leaving the parking authority deeply indebted.

Institutions that have moved farward with monetization programs include the City of Indianapolis {On-Street
Parking Program) and The Ohio State University. Many more have looked at monetization and chosen a
different path.

In 2011, Kimley-Horn’s Dennis Burns led a panel of Public/Private Partnership experts at the International
Downtown Association's Spring Conference in Chicago. These industry leaders praised the many benefits of
public/private partnerships as well as the monetization of certain public assets such as toll roads, bridges, and
even airports. They agreed that parking programs were 2 different matter entirely. The bottom line seemed to
be that parking systems are actually more complex and tend to get very messy.

Other major parking programs that looked at monetization but backed away include the City of Las Vegas, the
City of Memphis, the City of Sacramentg, and the City of Tucson among others. Most of these cities came to the
realization that parking is an important part of their civic infrastructure, parking was intrinsically linked to many
of the critical areas including community and economic development, and giving up control of these assets
limited their flexibility and potential management responses in the future.

Another key factor in these decisions is the notion that if these entities can provide such dramatic increases in
operating efficiencies and increased revenues to justify such large upfront cash payments, why can’t we
implement these strategies ourselves and pocket the profits these firms would have realized? This has given rise
to a new slogan in the industry “Modernize — not monetize.”

There is & growing appreciation of the importance of parking as a tool for economic development as well as
critical element of community infrastructure. Key considerations include:

= Who will be responsible for planning and funding future parking needs?

*  Think about how many individuai “customer touches” parking represents each day.
»  Parkingis often your customer’s first and last impression of downtown.

*  Well managed parking is both a responsibility and an opportunity.

In the end, no matter if parking is monetized or not, it is critical that the system be managed well in the interest
of downtown development and economic vitality.

Downtown Study Area 141



@ @ DOWNTOWN b
ilings s 2
STRATEGIC PLAN L8

Final Report — April 2015

8. Parking System Organization and Management

As the parking profession has evolved, several very effective parking system organizational models
have emerged. Each of these models has its own strengths and weakness depending on several
factors including the parking system's size, degree of development, programs offered, political
landscape, community goals, etc. The four most successful and commonly utilized organizational
models are:

s A Consolidated (“vertically integrated”) City/District Department model
¢ The Parking Authority model

¢ The "Contract” or Business District model

¢ The Parking District model

There are of course several variations and hybrids of these models, but these are the four primary
alternatives commonly seen across the country. Each of these models will be detailed in more depth
in the following sections, but they all have one common factor that contributes to their success: They
all address the major problem associated with the “horizontally integrated model” previously
described.

When evaluating which organizational option will work best in a specific community, it is important to
ask community stakeholders to create a prioritized set of evaluation criteria. A typical list of criteria
would include determining which organizational option:

e best supports economic development

¢ best reflects the image and personality of the community
* is most efficient/cost effective

e is most customer-friendly

e is most politically feasible

e is most focused on the vision

* s easiest to achieve

* is most responsive to businesses and stakeholders

s is most financially viable

e provides the most effective coordination

The following is a brief description of parking system organizational models that have shown
demonstrated success in recent years. Each description is illustrated by an example of a specific program
based on that model.

i < Page 69 of 122
Kimley»Horn salestgremep age 69 0



oYY @ DOWNTOWN X
illings . o R
STRATEGIC PLAN e
Final Report — April 2015

Consolidated (“Vertically Integrated”) City/District Department Model

A Consolidated “Vertically Integrated” City/District Department Model is essentially a typical
department - lead by a department head and consisting of a varying assortment of support staff. The
defining characteristic of this model is that the department director has complete responsibility for
the management of all parking related program elements. The primary elements of these being:

e Off-street parking facilities

o On-street parking resources

s QOverall program financial performance
e  Parking system planning

e Parking enforcement

There are numerous other refated areas that can be included:

¢ Transportation demand management (Trip Reduction Programs, Preferential Parking for Car/Van
Pools, transit programs, etc.)

s Parking system branding, marketing, and community outreach.

¢ |mplementation of new technologies.

e Parking system planning {(e.g., zoning, financial planning).

o Residential permit parking programs.

e Interface with downtown development and economic development

The City of Fart Collins, Colorado has a consolidated parking
management program that incorporates off-street parking
(parking structures and surface lots), on-street parking (time
limited on-street spaces), and parking enforcement. The
city’s Parking Manager also has developed a program to
promote effective coordination and collaboration with the
owners of private parking to better support evening
restaurant parking demands and for specizl events. Another
feature arising from this integrated approach is that the city
is currently embarking on a parking technology assessment.

A key feature of this assessment is to identify technology
options that could link on-street/enforcement systems (Auto-
Vu LPR enforcement technology/T-2 systems software) with
the next generation of off-street parking equipment and
potentially new on-street multi-space meters.) This type of
creative and integrated thinking is more common in systems
with a vertically integrated organizational structure.

. e Page 70 of 122
Kimley»Horn S@Iestgguep S



@ @ DOWNTOWN _
illings zsc o g»,;.,
STRATEGIC PLAN.. i

Final Report — April 2015

The Parking Authority Model

Parking authorities typically operate with a small staff and engage a private parking operator to
manage day-to-day operations. One advantage of the Parking Authority model, especially in a
municipal setting, is that it puts all the major parties at the same table. This helps stakeholders gain a
deeper appreciation for the competing agendas between various constituents.

The defining characteristics of a Parking Authority Model include:

Although the authority may not control all of the parking in a
downtown area, that does not mean they cannot affect the
entire downtown. In Toledo, Ohio, the Downtown Toledo
Parking Authority (DTPA) so dramatically transformed the
operations in its three facilities that all the other private
parking operations were forced to follow suit. Now virtually
all downtown parking facilities have attendants in new
uniforms, customer service training for front-line staff,
parking structure interiors are painted white, new customer
friendly parking technologies and programs are being
installed/instituted — all following the DTPA's lead.

Kimley»Horn S@lesbee
Broup

It has a defined mission and vision

It is governed by a detailed management agreement

Often has bonding capability

Most often has responsibility for all aspects of parking operations (off-street, on-street, and
enforcement)

It is typically headed by a President or Executive Director

s}

(o]
o]
o

Because of this they tend to attract the highest caliber parking management personnel
The President or Executive Director reports to a board (Typically 7 — 15 members)
The board is comprised of influential and invested downtown stakeholders.
Board composition typically includes:

= High level city staff.

= Mayor or City Manager (or appointee).

s Director of Finance.

= Director of Public Works.

=  Property owners/developers.

= Downtown association members.

»  Chamber of Commerce representative.

= Large downtown employers.

Page 71 of 122



PY ® DOWNTOWN
illiNGS 225 v
STRATEGIC PLAN

The “Contract” or Business District Model
In a surprising number of communities across the United States, downtown business improvement
districts or downtown associations are taking operational responsibility for parking. Similar to the
Parking Authority Model, the Contract or Business District Model is governed by a well-defined
operating agreement that sets specific expectations and limits on the use of parking assets. These
contracts or agreements must typically be reauthorized every 3 — 5 years based on whether the
defined contract goals were met. If reauthorized, it is not uncommon for new goals and program
objectives to be set for the next contract period. [

Final Report — April 2015

In Boise, |daho the off-street parking program is
professionally managed by the Capital City Development
Corporation - the city’s urban renewal agency. Through
the aggressive use of tax increment financing combined
with a strategy of leading other desired development with
parking infrastructure investment, downtown Boise has
become a national model of downtown resurgence.

Another example of this model can be found in Tempe,
Arizona. The City of Tempe does not own any significant
parking facilities and only a few small surface parking lots.
In Tempe, the need for a coordinated parking system
solution to provide a more user friendly experience for
visitors drove the downtown organization — the
Downtown Tempe Community, Inc. {DTC) — to create
what amounts to a “parking management overlay”
program. Working with the owners of the off-street
parking assets, they created a parking system
management plan. Through creative signage, a common
parking validation program, and extensive marketing,
they branded the parking system to such an extent that it
appears that Tempe has a well-managed and
comprehensive parking program, although they do not
own all of the individual assets. DTC acts, in essence, as a
private parking management firm. They manage all
parking staff and programs themselves, and return all
profits to the facility owners (keeping a modest management fee). The DTC also manages the city’s
on-street parking resources and reinvests on-street parking revenues back into the downtown.

i Page 72 of 122
Kimley»Horn "S”@lesl:g%% age 720



° ® DOWNTOWN ,
illings s om
STRATEGIC PLAN

; Final Report - April 2015

The Parking District Model

The Parking District Model is slightly different than the previously defined model, but as mentioned
earlier, the one common element of all of these successful models is the goal of a creating a
“comprehensive parking management function” under the control of one leader (“vertical
integration”).

The characteristics of a parking district include:

¢ They typically have a defined area with set boundaries.
e They may have a special assessment that applies to all properties within the district.

o This revenue generally goes toward defined district improvements, but could be restricted
to parking or transportation related projects.

e They are generally run by an Executive Director or President {although some are run by city
department heads).
¢ All revenues are collected and managed by the district for reinvestment in the district.

o Insome cases, if revenues exceed operational or capital program needs, the additional
funds are returned to the city’s general fund.

o In other cases, the city assesses the district a fee based on a percentage of net revenues
in-lieu of not assessing property taxes on the parking facilities. This money goes to the
city's general fund.

¢ Revenue sources typically include:

o Special assessment revenue (if
applicable).

o Off-street parking revenue.

= Could include
miscellaneous revenue
sources such as: advertising
(in parking structures),
vending machines or retail
space rental {mixed-use
parking facilities).

»  Could also include special
event parking revenue.

o On-street parking revenue.

o Parking enforcement revenue.

Parking Districts have made some significant contributions to the communities they serve. For
example, in Boulder, Colorado, the Downtown and University Hill Management District/Parking
Services can boast the following list of accomplishments (all paid for with parking district revenues):

» Funding of the Eco-Pass Program - $700,000 for 2006.
o This program gives all downtown employees a free bus pass and contributes to a 62%
modal split among downtown employees (reducing parking demand).

i S Page 73 of 122
Kimley»Horn s@lesbgrewep age73 0



o @ DOWNTOWN 3
l Iln s PARKING o
STRATEGIC PLAN L7

Final Report — April 2015

* Repayment of a $3.4 million Mall Improvement Bond - $500,000/yr.
o This is a good example of the parking program contributing to community economic

development.

¢ Payment of Parking Structure Debt Service Obligations.
o Parking district revenues fund the development costs of downtown public parking
structures as well as all parking operating and maintenance costs.
o One of the more impressive parts of this program has been the leadership in defining
appropriate design guidelines for parking structures,

= Only mixed-used

structures are permitted.
®  They must incorporate
street level retail and be
architecturally consistent
with the downtown
fabric. Some have been
multi-modal in nature —
integrating transit
functions with parking.

The Professional Services Model

A more recently developed organizational model is the “Professional Services” model. In this model, a
smaller more professional level parking services group is developed in conjunction with the outsourcing of
day-to-day operations. While there are many potential variations under this category, the most successful
variation involves a group that is primarily administrative in nature.

The management group is responsible for program elements such as: creating the vision and mission of
the program, community outreach and program development {including assessment of new technologies,
etc.), parking system planning, interface with economic development programs, interface with

transpartation system functions (including alternative
transportation programs), contract administration,
parking facility long-term maintenance program
development, system financial administration/audit
functions, and special projects management.

Parking operations are outsourced to a gualified parking
management firm. Their responsibilities would typically
include: off-street parking facility operations (cashiering
services, pay-on-foot operations, etc.), daily facilities
maintenance, security, etc. Some communities have

Kimley»Horn &@leshee
8rcup

Page 74 of 122



@ @® DOWNTOWN ._
1Hlings ..o
STRATEGIC PLAN

Final Report — April 2015

extended these contract services to include the operation of on-street parking and parking enforcement
programs including citation collections and management. For on-street and enforcement operations
meter maintenance and collections, citation issuance, collections and adjudication can all be outsourced
as well,

Another feature often used in conjunction with the Professional Services Model is the development of
“on-call services agreements” for various types of consulting and professional services such as:
engineering facility condition appraisals, technology assessments, revenue control system assessment and
audits, etc.

The primary advantages of this model are that parking is managed by a lean group of management staff
focused on key areas such as:

s Program Administration and Finance

e Audit/Revenue Control

e Contract Administration

e Special Projects

e Marketing/Branding/Communications

* Economic Development/Customer Satisfaction/Business Community Interface

Day-to-day operations are outsourced. This can have the effect of keeping a better focus on the strategic
goals of the parking program without getting mired in the myriad operational issues that make up day-to-
day management.

Communities beginning to implement this approach include the City of Beverly Hills and the City of
Lincoln, NE,

The Parking Management Collaborative Approach

As mentioned earlier, this approach was developed specifically to address the set of conditions that exist
in communities that have chosen not to develop a significant off-street public parking system and
therefore do not have much ability to influence the off-street parking market in traditional ways.

The Parking Management Collaborative approach is comprised of the following basic tenets:

* There is a demonstrated need to improve the ease of use and access to parking in the downtown,
especially for occasional visitors.

* There is recognition that a comprehensive approach that will coordinate and integrate both on-
street parking and off-street parking assets is needed to make the downtown more visitor-
friendly.

e On-street parking assets will be better managed as a short-term parking resource with the primary
management goal being to promote a high degree of turnover for the benefit the merchants and
businesses that depend on an effectively managed supply of convenient short-term parking
resources. A goal of maintaining an average on-street occupancy level of approximately 85% shall
be key program goal/benchmark.

i & Page 75 of 122
Kimley»Horn SEIeSbgr%uep age 750



O @ DOWNTOWN i
illings s -
STRATEGIC PLAN S,

Final Report — April 2015

e Because the majority of off-street parking in the downtown is privately owned and operated, a
collaborative approach to developing a downtown parking management strategy is needed. The
primary objective of this approach is to develop what is essentially a “parking management
program overlay” that will create a well-coordinated and marketed user-friendly parking system
that will appear to the casual user as a public parking program.

o The key functional elements of this parking management overlay include:
»  Program Branding and Marketing
= A comprehensive updated downtown parking and wayfinding program
= A central parking and transportation information clearinghouse function
= A special event coordination function
= Asignificant parking and transportation planning function
= Coordination with community and economic development activities
= Management of City owned parking assets
» Coordination with The Downtown Alliance in support of downtown business
needs

» The Parking Management Collaborative will strive to promote superior, customer oriented parking
programs and parking facility standards.

e Parking planning and coordination will be important functions related to understanding and
responding to both the current and future parking needs of uptown users.

s The diverse needs of various user groups will be considered, including visitors, employees,
employers, property owners and parking management firms, through active planning,
coordination and communications.

¢ The Parking Management Collaborative shall be considered an integral component of the
coammunity’s economic development strategies and programs.

The following nine elements will be the primary strategies to be implemented by the Parking Management
Collaborative:

1. Develop a parking system brand and
marketing program.

2. Create a web-based parking and
transportation information
clearinghouse. Become the central
point for coordination of information
related to parking and access options
for the community.

3. Promote the principles of balanced
access for all travel modes, including
vehicular, pedestrian, bicycle and
transit, to meet community-wide
goals

4, Focus on creating an excellent
customer service orientation for all

Page 76 of 122

Kimley»Horn Selesbee
Broup



@ ® DOWNTOWN
illings :se v ~
STRATEGIC PLAN Sk

Final Report — April 2015

parking user groups - visitors, employees, employers, property owners, etc.

5. Develop an effective interface between public and private parking providers.

6. Work with parking management collaborative members to create high standards for safe,
attractive and well-maintained facilities

7. Take an aggressive and proactive approach to community education related to parking and
transportation issues and new program development. Be responsiveness to the needs of the
diverse customer/citizen base.

8. Actively coordinate with economic vitality initiatives, retail support strategies and other
community and economic development programs.

9. Develop a strong parking and transportation planning function and promote good urban design,
shared parking, walkability and transit oriented development approaches to create a superior,
people oriented urban center.

This approach needs only a small, but highly effective staff to be successful. The recruitment of an
executive caliber program director with strong vision and excellent communication skills is essential for
this strategy to succeed. The other key ingredient is to get buy-in from the major parking property
owners. This is typically accomplished by recruiting them to be on the program’s Board of Directors. In
some cases where all the right individuals are already on the board of an existing downtown organization
(especially if creating “yet another board” would be seen as an issue) this function could become an
initiative of that organization.

One of the key values of have the major parking property owners engaged at this level is that this will lead
to them directing the parking management firms they manage or hire to “get on-board” with this
program. Engaging the parking management firms on another level can also be very valuable because of
their detailed knowledge of conditions “on the street” and their knowledge parking management
principles in general.

The first major city to employ this model is Charlotte, NC, where the collaborative was located,
organizationally, in the business improvement district known as the Charlotte City Center Partners

The Eco-District Model

EcoDistrict Initiatives are a comprehensive strategy to accelerate sustainable neighborhood
development. The purpose of this overview is to clarify the value proposition, define performance
areas, and outline an implementation strategy as it relates to adapting this approach to a parking and
transportation program organizational framework.

At its heart an EcoDistrict is a neighborhood or district with a broad commitment to accelerate
neighborhood-scale sustainability. Eco-Districts commit to achieving ambitious sustainability
performance goals, guiding district investments and community action, and tracking the results over
time.

A parking and transportation Eco District approach would recognize technologies and strategies for
enhancing district sustainability, such as energy and water management systems within parking
developments, support for green streets, the promotion of resource conservation, etc.

. e Page 77 of 122
Kimley »Horn S@lestgrgug e



P ® DOWNTOWN 3
illings zxs. =
B '!
STRATEGIC PLAN o

Final Report — April 2015

In this case, since parking can be a significant revenue source, we envision parking revenues being
dedicated first to supporting parking program operations, maintenance reserves, and technology
upgrades, but once the parking program is well established and generating excess revenues that these
resources would be invested in a variety of sustainability initiatives. Examples might include programs
such as:

¢ Community bike programs — to support an overall “Parking Once Strategy”

e Car sharing programs — to support downtown residential development

* Pervious pavement installation and bio-swales as demonstration projects in city surface parking
lots

It should be noted that the widespread deployment of these strategies has been slow to develop due
to lack of comprehensive assessment tools, scalable project capital, and public policy support. The
Eco-Districts Initiative focuses on removing these implementation barriers and creating an enabling
strategy to accelerate neighborhood-scale sustainability.

The Eco-Districts Initiative is distinct from most green development strategies that focus on
brownfield or greenfield development that are primarily led by master developers or public agencies.
Instead, the Eco-Districts Initiative targets districts - at the intersection of buildings, infrastructure and
people. This initiative would be “working upstream” of rating systems like LEED-ND to develop tools
and strategies for engagement and project implementation.

Generally, the Eco-Districts approach brings together community stakeholders, property developers,
utilities, and the City of Salt Lake City to solidify a shared sense of purpose and partnership through
the following actions:

Create an engagement and governance strategy to build community support, set priorities and act
Develop an assessment and management toolkit to guide project development and track ongoing
performance

» Implement sustainability projects through technical and economic feasibility analysis, assembly of
project financing, and establishment of public-private partnerships

» |dentify commercialization opportunities for companies to test promising products and practices

e Establish municipal policy and regulatory structures to support EcoDistrict development

In this specific application, the general goals above still apply, however because of our focus on
parking and transportation functions there will be some variation and more specific applications.
However, the broad-based nature of parking and transportation, the need for on-going stakeholder
engagement and the larger economic development focus makes this application very appealing.
Overall, transportation accounts for about 30% of the nation’s carbon footprint. Organizing your
parking program to have an explicit “eco-district” orientation would send a strong signal of the City’s
commitment to environmental progress.

. - Page 78 of 122
Kimley»Horn Ssles bee



4 ® DOWNTOWN
illings s z
STRATEGIC PLAN Sl

Final Report - April 2015

PARKING SYSTEM OPERATING METHODOLOGIES

Once a management structure has been determined, operating methodologies are another
organizational/management consideration. There are three primary methodologies for operating parking
programs. These are:

1. Self-Operation — The managing entity or owner operates the parking program itself. For
example, a downtown parking authority could hire the necessary staff to operate the parking
system internally,

2. Outsourced - Management Contract — The facility owner or managing organization contracts
a private parking management firm to handle day-to-day operations and maintenance
through a management contract. Through the management contract, the private parking
management firm is either paid a fixed management fee and/or a percentage of gross
revenues and is reimbursed by the owner for all costs incurred in the operation.

3. Outsourced - Concession Agreement - The facility owner or managing organization contracts
a parking management firm to assume full responsibility for all aspects of the operation,
including expenses, and the parking management firm pays the owner a guaranteed amount
and/or a percentage of gross revenues {or a combination).

A variation on these basic methodologies that is just being introduced in the US parking market is that
of parking system “monetization”. A more detailed description of each option is provided in the
following sub-sections.

Self-Operation

Self-operation of the parking system requires that the owning entity provide all the necessary
employees (e.g., full or part-time staff and/or temporary employees}, equipment, supplies, etc. With
this method of operation, the owning entity receives all gross parking revenues and pays for all
operating expenses. Self-operation requires internal administrative and managerial staff at a higher
level than the management contract or concession style agreements.

Self-operation allows the owning entity to have complete control over the parking facilities and the
level of service provided to its patrons. This requires a well-trained and experienced staff to
effectively manage a large parking operation with significant daily revenues. Parking has become a
highly specialized field and also requires good general and facility management skills. Without proper
training and professional development, self-operation can result in a lower than desired level of
service and revenue controls. This, in conjunction with the requirements for a high level of customer
service and the specialized nature of parking, makes the idea of using a professional parking
management firm a logical and attractive alternative for initial downtown parking operations.

Potential advantages of self-operation include:

e Complete control over day-to-day parking operations, including customer service.
¢ Internal parking knowledge to assist with future planning.
¢ Uniform look and feel with other city services.

. Page 79 of 122
Kimley»Horn "S“@lesgewep e



@ ® DOWNTOWN _
illings sz v -
STRATEGIC PLAN L7
Final Report — April 2015

e Better control over staff and staff training.
e Eliminates paying a management fee to a vendor.

Disadvantages to this approach would include:

s Typically higher expenses than contracting with a private parking provider due to:
o Higher pay rates than private operators especially in a unionized environment
o More restrictive benefit requirements
o Higher staff training and development costs
o Private operators have a greater economy of scale relative to supplies
o Higher insurance costs/requirements.
e [More operational duties for the city.
e Smaller staff pool to draw from for covering sick days and vacations.
¢  Without adequate training, customer service could suffer.
e The city would need to find and hire experienced parking staff.
* The city would have higher administrative and back office costs than an experienced private
operator.
e The city would deal directly with customer complaints.
* The city would assume all of the financial risks related with the parking system.
e Can be more difficult to terminate the employment of staff when needed.

Management Agreement Operations

In this form of operation the owning entity retains complete control over staffing levels, validation
policies, parking rates, and customer service policies. With a management agreement, the parking
operator provides the necessary labor and services for the operation of the parking facilities in
accordance with an agreed upon policies and annual operating expense budgets established by the
owner. The parking operator then receives a monthly payment, either a lump sum amount or a
percentage of the gross or net revenue. This monthly payment represents the fee to manage the
facilities.

The parking operator should provide the owning entity with a detailed monthly report package
including: operating statistics, revenue summaries, expenses summaries, budget variance reports, etc.
The management agreement still requires some additional personnel time for the owning entity’s
staff, since it is necessary to audit the gross parking revenues, as well as the monthly operating
expenses. The preferred arrangement is that all reporting guidelines and accounting practices are
determined up-front so that each party understands their responsibilities.

The owning entity’s stakeholders and staff should have significant input into establishing the “level of
service” for the parking system by deciding on the type of parking access and revenue control systems
to be employed, the quantity of cashiers/customer service ambassadors, acceptable traffic queuing
upon exit, lost ticket/insufficient funds policies, parking related services offered {lost vehicle
assistance, dead battery assistance, vehicle lock-out assistance), etc.

. P 80 of 122
Kimley »Horn §@|esl%remep e



o ® DOWNTOWN
l ln S PARKING : o
STRATEGIC PLAN LT

Final Report - April 2015

The following outlines the potential advantages of outsourced day-to-day operations via management
agreement (in conjunction with a small in-house contract management function):

Reasonable control over day-to-day parking operations.
An internal parking manager could be hired by the city with sufficient parking knowledge to assist
with future planning.
A well-structured management agreement would provide:
o Reasonable control over staff and staff training.
o High customer service expectations.
o A high level of staff appearance.
o Strong auditing capabilities
o Operator accountability.
Parking services from an experienced service provider.
Typically, operations are less expensive due to:
o Lower staffing costs.
o Lower supply costs.
o Lowaer training costs.
o Lower administrative costs.
o Lower insurance costs.
The use of a private parking operator, at least for a short time, would provide valuable parking
experience to the city.
Potentially, a large pool of private operator staff to draw from for sick day and employee
vacations.
The contracted parking operator would deal with most customer complaints.
Relatively predictable parking system expenses.

Disadvantages to this approach include:

The city would have to compensate a private operator with a management fee or a percentage of
gross revenues.

Somewhat less control over day-to-day operations.

Somewhat less control over staffing and training issues.

The city would need to find and hire an experienced parking manager.

The city would have some administrative and back office staffing costs.

The city would assume most of the financial risks related with the parking system.

Concession Agreement Operations

With a concession agreement, the concessionaire will provide all necessary labor and services for the
complete operation of parking facilities in return for a percentage of the gross parking revenues. The
actual percentage varies from operation to operation based on the size, complexity, revenue potential,
and perceived risk to the operator. There may be a guaranteed minimum annual payment to the owning
entity. Sometimes a revenue split is negotiated for revenues above a certain level.

Kimley»Horn Selesbee
group

Page 81 of 122



@ ® DOWNTOWN
illings sexs. o 2
STRATEGIC PLAN'. -
Final Report — April 2015

In general, concession agreements work best in situations where the owning entity wishes to divest itself
from the day-to-day parking operational concerns in order to better focus on its core business (these types
of arrangements are more common in airports for example). With this type of agreement, a minimal
amount of time is required by the owning entity’s staff in the day-to-day operations of the parking
program. The owning entity also gives up some level of control as it relates to defining day-to-day
operations, as the concessionaire is responsible for all expenses and most liabilities. Typically, the owning
entity receives a deposit from monthly parking revenues within two weeks after the end of the each
calendar month. Periodic conversations with the parking operator are necessary to discuss operational
issues that affect the quality of service to owning entity’s patrons.

The concession agreement is the simplest type of agreement for administrative purposes, in that only the
gross parking revenue need be audited. All operational expenses are the responsibility of the
concessionaire, thereby resulting in minimal control of this function by owning entity staff. Also, as with
the management agreement, the parking operator serves as a buffer to the owning entity’s management
with respect to parking complaints and potential wrongdoing by those employed within the parking
system.

Potential advantages of concession style leasing of parking facilities include:

¢ Noreal parking operations or management required by the city.

e No substantial daily auditing required by the city.

» Facilities would be leased to an experienced parking services provider.
* Requires no internal parking experience on the part of the city.

s Relatively predictable revenue stream.

e Less operations related financial risk.

s Parking operator takes all significant parking customer complaints.

Disadvantages to this approach would include:

s Little to no control over day-to-day parking operations.

® No control over staffing and training issues.

e Less customer service accountability.

¢ Difficult to measure parking system expenses, if the parking operator is required to share them at
all.

o The parking operator may be encouraged to reduce facility expenses to a minimum level
(negatively impacting customer service), to increase profits.

Parking System Monetization (or Privatization)

This option, which is also sometimes referred to as “Public-Private Partnerships” or “PPPs”(there are other
types of public private partnerships that do not involve monetizing public assets and so | will focus on the
term “monetization ) is very similar to the concession agreement approach described above with the

. e p 82 of 122
Kimley»Hom Seleshee e



@ ® DOWNTOWN ._
illings zssise z
STRATEGIC PLAN T
Final Report — April 2015

exception that the term is much longer and the owning entity receives a large cash infusion at the front
end of the deal which is then paid back (with significant finance and other fees) aver the term of the lease.

In the last few years, this concept has attracted more interest as many cities, counties and states face
deep budget deficits. As a result, there has been an extensive amount of study and commentary on this
trend. The U.S. Government Accountability Office (GAO), the Public Interest Research Group {PIRG) and
state legislatures have issued comprehensive reports on the subject. The Texas State Legislature recently
released an extensive report on PPPs in toll road projects, and the Federal Highway Administration
examined PPPs in other countries. The various reports and studies illuminate some basics of best practices
for asset monetization.

In my opinion some of the most insightful analysis of these event and issues has come from Stephen
Goldsmith. Mr. Goldsmith, a former mayor of Indianapalis, is director of the Innovations in American
Government Program at the Harvard Kennedy School. He is author of the forthcoming book The Power of
Social Innovation: How Civic Entrepreneurs Ignite Community Networks for Good. Many of his insights are
included in the summary of “good asset monetization goals and key issues” below.

Examples of Good Privatization Goals & Key Issues to Consider

1. Identifying non-core functions and areas that are not core competencies
a. If parking management is not a core competency of the City then it is a candidate for
privatization; however, if you are lucky enough to have a high functioning parking system that
is providing excellent service and is contributing to community growth and deveiopment,
think twice about what you may be giving up.
2. Establishing a long-term reserve fund to:
a. Enhance City credit rating and thus lower interest rates
i. Chicago did this and enjoyed its highest credit rating since 1978
b. Retire Debt
c. Eliminate interest payments and thereby create more money for community reinvestment
I Chicago retired $925 million in debt
d. Community Reinvestment
i. ldentify and fund a well-defined set of community desired or essential infrastructure
projects
ii. Programs that serve the public good
1. Example: Neighborhood parks and programs
a. Chicago invested more than $325 million in this area
iii. Infrastructure investments that will stimulate additional private sector investments
1. Example: Parking structures as part of a public/private partnership.
3. Shifting Risk
a. Consider the potential risks of managing on-street metered parking for the next 75 years
(imagine bidding on the City’s horseshoeing concession in 1890, or the public pay phone
concession in 1975)
i. Changing technologies
ii. Utilization

i < Page 83 of 122
Kimley »Horn S@Iestg%% age 830



o ® DOWNTOWN ;
illings ez .. SR =
STRATEGIC PLAN L7

) Final Report — April 2015

iii. Costs
1. Rising labor costs
2. Rising fuel costs
3. Equipment replacement
a. InChicago, the cost of replacing the multi-space meters every 7 years
is estimated at $40 - $50 million dollars.
4. Carefully analyze the term of any potential concession

a. Both the Chicago Inspector General's analysis and financial experts who have analyzed the
deal indicate that Chicago should have negotiated a shorter lease period.

i. Under their analysis, Chicago left significant future earnings on the table when it
agreed to a 75 year concession term (estimated at $1.3 to $2.1 hillion).
5. Look at Alternative Solutions to Budget Problems

a. Chicago is the poster child for using the proceeds of PPP asset leases to plug a budget
operating deficit and selling its residents’ future.

b. In 2006 the city sold the Chicago Skyway for $1.83 billion, of which $460 million was used to
pay off debt, $375 million was used to close the 2006 operating budget gap and $500 million
was placed in a rainy day fund. The $500 million rainy day fund was exhausted to close
operating budget gaps in years 2007 and 2008.

6. Key elements of a PPP deal are transparency, expertise and setting controls over rates and

“windfall profits.”

a. Allow Elected Officials to Approve the Terms of Any Proposed Agreement Before It Is Put Out
to Bid

b. Don’t let the market/bidders solely dictate the terms of the PPP through a request for
proposal process. Elected officials should have the power to alter the terms of the proposed
deal as they see fit and drive the process through negotiation rather than have a fait accompli
handed to them.

¢. The Texas State Legislature’s recent report on PPPs advocated revenue sharing over single,
upfront payments as a better way to protect the public interest, The report also noted that
key elements of a PPP deal are transparency, expertise and setting controls over rates and
“windfall profits.”

7. Do Not Include Lease Proceeds in a Government Budget before the Leases Are Finalized

a. Having a budget balanced on the back of lease proceeds makes it extremely difficult for
officials to reject an asset lease or concession deal. Consider adopting an ordinance
prohibiting a city’s budget from including revenue from PPP proceeds before commissioners
have approved the deal.

8. Consider the Creation of a Concession Management Review Board

a. Theimpact of these deals will affect a broad array of citizens, civic and cultural organizations,
religious and educational institutions and corporations. These are individuals and businesses
that are invested in their communities and deserve a voice as well as an open and transparent
process.

9, Consider the Creation of a Downtown Parking Management Commission

a. The Parking Management Commission could be made up of City, Parking Authority and

Downtown Stakeholders and should require the concessioner to be engaged with Parking

' Page 84 of 122
Kimley »Horn "s‘glest%%ep age 840



@ ® DOWNTOWN
illings s o 5
STRATEGIC PLANF ——

Final Report — April 2015

Commission. The Parking Commission would provide an annual program assessment to City
Council.

10. Term of the Agreement
a. Limit to 30 - 50 years
b. Build in a mechanism to address changes in annual expectations
c. Establish a defined monitoring process
d. Create a process to generate an Annual Stakeholder Report Card

i. If the deal were to “go sour” have a plan for “How to get out?” - Who pays what to
whom?
ii. Consider alternatives to a one-time only payment
iii. Consider a lesser up-front payment with annual incremental payments to a dedicated
parking reinvestment fund.
iv. For cities with a parking tax, could the parking tax constitute the annual incremental
payment?

11. Maintaining and Improving Service Levels to Users of the Parking System
a. From the perspective of parking customer’s and those invested in the downtown a strong,

well-managed parking system is critical to their success. The concessioner should ideally be a
“partner for the success of the downtown” and implement programs and policies to
effectively address the following:
i. Greater availability of parking spaces

ii. More convenient, start of the art equipment

iii. Multiple payment options

iv. Quicker service of broken equipment

1. In Chicago meters are now repaired within a couple of hours on average
compared to 2.5 days under the City run system
v. Retail parking, employee parking, event parking, etc.
vi. Special programs to meet the needs of cultural, religious and civic institutions as well
as customized neighborhood programs.

12, Building on the “Partnership for Downtown Success” concept requires an understanding of the
needs of the business community, downtown residents and religious and cultural institutions.
Once these needs are understood, implementation of parking program enhancements should be
introduced. This is where the special expertise of a parking profession is needed. Programs to
meet identified community needs might include:

a. Extended time limits near theaters, concert halls, schools and churches where parker need
more than 2 hours
Free or reduced rate parking for churches on Sunday mornings

¢. Automatic ticket dismissal for inoperable meters, based on meter malfunction reports
generated by the system.

d. Ability to pay citations on-line or even at a meter

e. Improved parking access and convenient parking for hourly parkers to support downtown
retail

f. Discounted monthly parking in certain lots

g. Donated single space meters to protect bicycle parking or as vehicles for charitable donations

i S Page 85 of 122
Kimley»Horn s@lesbg%ep age 850



@ @ DOWNTOWN :
illings s o x
STRATEGIC PLAN LT

Final Report — April 2015

13, Promote sustainable and innovative parking technologies & interior parking facility environment
enhancements
a. Improved customer service features
b. Adopt “retail friendly” parking management best practices
c. Create safe, clean and friendly parking environments
d. Investin sustainable design & management practices
14, Other Issues to Consider...
a. Who will develop and manage new parking facilities?
b. Will the concessioner be allowed to manage of competing facilities?
€. Where will rate setting authority reside?

RECOMMENDED ORGANIZATIONAL OPTION

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. strongly recommends that the City of Billings work to create a more
vertically integrated downtown parking system. Billings already has a more vertically integrated parking
program than many cities. The following model is the recommended option for the City’s consideration: A
Hybrid of “The Vertically Integrated City Department Model” and the “Parking Commission Madel”.

While this option is among the most the conservative and traditional of the organizational options, it is
recommended because we have been impressed with the quality and competence of the City staff that we
have dealt with in the course is this study. The current City parking program is better integrated in terms
of the basic parking program services already (with primary responsibility for managing on-street, off-
street and parking enforcement functions). To achieve a more fuily integrated parking program, it is
envisioned that additional functions will be added over about a five year period. These additional
functions should include:

* A more robust parking planning function {working with City Planning on parking and related
transportation issues). There are a number of parking specific planning tools that will be
recommended. Parking should also be at the table when issues related to zoning code changes
and parking requirements are debated and amended.

s Better integration and collaboration with downtown management and economic development
programs. One of the lessons learned from the parking advisory panelist’s programs is the extent
to which parking can become a true community partner in terms of downtown revitalization and
development efforts. Collaborative program initiatives and participation on boards and
committees and generally closer working relationships can generate significant community wide
benefits to all parties.

» A specific focus on developing programs related to transportation demand management,
transportation alternatives and other sustainable transportation program options

The current City parking program has recently hired a new parking manager (an upgrade from the former
department leader whose title was parking supervisor). As the department evolves into a more robust,
mature program with an expanded scope of services, it is recommended that the parking manager
position be reviewed with an eye toward the development of a “Parking Director” or “Parking
Administrator” level position. An extensive document has been provided in the report appendices which

. o Page 86 of 122
Kimley»Horn s@lest;%ep



® @ DOWNTOWN
illings sz o |
STRATEGIC PLAN SR

Final Report — April 2015

provides an overview of parking administrator positions from around the country including salary
information, examples of program scopes and several example position descriptions.

As the department expands its scope and matures, new potential areas of focus might include “accounting
and auditing”, “planning and community education” and “special projects”. If recommendations to
upgrade parking technologies (both on and off-street) are implemented, the special projects area might
become especially important.

This option also envisions some form of parking counsel or board to provide a mechanism for ensuring
community engagement and input. We are aware of the current legal restrictions in the City Charter
related to “commissions” and the unsuccessful attempt to pass new legislation, however, some senior City
officials expressed the opinion that there may be other options that might be considered. The major
concern here is that while the current Parking Advisory Board has many community leaders who are both
invested in downtown Billings and have strong business backgrounds to provide sound direction and
guidance, the lack of authority to affect policy decisions is negatively impacting their desire to stay
engaged.

A framework should be developed whereby certain “policy —level decisions” are defined as the
responsibility of the City Council and more operational level decisions are ceded to Parking Counsel of
Board”. The Parking Board should also be encouraged to draft policy level proposals for the City Council to
review and vote on.

It is also recommended that the City’s Parking Manager get involved in other related agencies either on
the board or committee levels to stay better connected to and be more engaged in downtown
development and revitalization efforts.

A recommended organizational structure diagram is included on the following page.

. e P 87 of 122
Kimley»Hom Seleshee wese



LU

@ ® DOWNTOWN | ¥
lllln PARKING : a2
STRATEGIC PLAN "

Final Report — April 2015

Billi ﬁ""” r? STRATEGIC PLAN;.

Recommended Organizatlan of Parking Management Functions
HYBRID OF THE VERTICALLY INTEGRATED CITY DEPARTMENT MODEL & PARKING COMMISSION MODEL

Description: A Vertically Integrated City department located organizationally under the City's Administration Department - This optlon s supported by a
Downtown Parking Management Counsel which advises City administration and City Councll on parking management policy decisions.

Vi ally Integrated City Dot Modad
O IO 2 Community Input and Advisory Function

- Downtown Parking Management Counse)
Supporteaby

| Parking Management Counsel Board (7 = 11 Members)

Cansolidated under the A 1 epartm

| Overall Parking Program Administration |

General Administration f Policy Bevelopmaent

Parking Administrator = i, s .
“ Downtown Billmgs Alliance Representatnes (2)

| I |
On-Street Parking Mgmt. Off-Street Parking Mgmt.

()n-Street"(i-p-t.;ralions =

TranatfActive transportation Heprosentatrves (2}
Community At-Large Representatives (3}

& Acce | hmm::vm'm Barking Management Counsel Focus Areas
| Maintenance and Revenue Control Policy Recommendations to Promate
| Bowntown Coordination/integration
| Adjudication (Courts) | Development Pubfi;as:;’t:r/ Private Sector I

Artoim.ti.n-g-ﬁ Auditing
: Marketing / Branding /

l On-Street Program Audits || Off-Street Faciiity Audits | t‘;:an:'r;ubgrﬂ;:nmt:m cé :vmm

_

(R virng kst kg g | BTy Wedieson 9| [P / 700/ e Techooogy |

|| Transportation & TOMCoordination || New Facsity Flanning & Design | : Signage/Wayfinding _:
Customer Satisfaction

i < Page 88 of 122
Kimley »Horn S@lest%%ep age 880



DOWNTOWN PARKING MANAGEMENT PLAN
City of Trenton, New Jersey

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

VERTICALLY INTEGRATING DOWNTOWN PARKING

MANAGEMENT

The City of Trenton initiated the current parking study, in part, to explore options for redesigning
its parking management organization and operations. A more cohesive management structure
and more effective operations have been recognized as a critical component to achieving several
of the transportation, growth, and quality of life measures outlined in Trenton 250. There is a
general sense that reorganization is necessary, but steps to implement this have suffered from a
lack of “vision” for what the new organization/structure would look like, and how future

operations would be managed on a day-to-day basis.

Recent parking pollcy recommendations

To help frame the context within which parking district development or reorganization should be
considered, the following are examples of parking related recommendations developed as part of
Trenton’s recent downtown transportation planning or strategic planning initiatives:

City policy should reflect the difference
between short-term and long-term parking

Provide better information and wayfinding
in advance of entering downtown to
enhance the parking experience

Establish a parking management group to
better coordinate the entire parking system

Promote structured parking as part of new
downtown development

Promote centralized and shared parking
Add new meters to unmetered areas as
parking demand exceeds a 50% utilization
threshold

Establish and staff a parking management
group

Develop parking management incentives

and strategies to offer to owners and
operators

Develop and require consistent parking
operations requirements

Develop an electronic, real-time parking
guidanece and availability system

Price on-street parking above off-street
parking

Implement a more convenient meter type
that provides multiple payment options

Adjust hours of enforcement to 9:00 A.M. to
8:00 P.M.

Implement a strong marketing program and
distribute maps

Enhance the universal validation system or
consider a “first hour free” program in off-
street public parking facilities

Survey public perception of parking on a
regular basis

Continue to expand the number of short-
term parking facilities

Re-evaluate parking requirements in the
downtown code

Modify parking meter rates in concert with
off-street parking and the economy

Evaluate market response to long term
market needs

Evaluate short-term parking adequacy

Recognize changes in modal split and traffic
congestion — evaluate parking strategies to
reflect changes

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 14



DOWNTOWN PARKING MANAGEMENT PLAN
City of Trenton, New Jersey

* Support the implementation of a Downtown » Coordinate public and private interests

Parking and Transportation Plan *  Address long-term transportation needs
= Educate the public about parking in the = Maximize the use of existing parking
downtown resources

While the above list includes many useful recommendations which would improve operations and
effectiveness of the existing parking system, the ultimate message is that the system requires a
fundamental review of how it is organized and operated, to allow good ideas to be implemented.
The following sections present a summary of best practices for parking organizational and
operating models. A full description of these models can be found in the Appendix.

Best Practice Organizational Model Options

As the parking profession has evolved, several very effective parking system organizational
models have emerged. Each of these models has its own strengths and weaknesses depending on
several factors including the parking system’s size, degree of development, programs offered,
political landscape, community goals, and other factors.

Parking management best practices center on the concept of a “vertical integration” of parking
functions. This is in contrast to the typical “horizontally fragmented” organizational structures
that tend to evolve naturally in many municipal parking organizations across the U.S.

Horizontally fragmented systems are defined by the compartmentalization of parking functions
and responsibilities, such as on-street parking, enforcement, and parking structures, among
multiple, disparate departments or entities. The police, facilities management, and accounting
departments all may play a role, yet no singular entity has responsibility for, perspective on, or
understanding of all of the interrelated functional areas that comprise a parking system. In this
scenario, there is no overall accountability for parking. Or put another way, parking is everyone’s
part-time job, but no one’s full-time responsibility.

While there are several variations and hybrids of arganizational models, the four primary
alternatives commonly seen across the country are described below (and in Figure 7).

Consolidated Department Model
Vertical integration within a City department

The consolidated or “vertically integrated” city department model is characterized by a
department head with complete responsibility for the management of all parking-related program
elements. Primary elements include off-street parking facilities, on-street parking resources,
overall program financial performance, parking system planning, and enforcement.

Parking Authority or Commission Model

All functions integrated within a parking-focused public quthority

In the parking authority model, a detailed management agreement and defined mission and
vision guide all aspects of parking operations. In most cases, a small staff led by a president or
executive director engages a private parking operator to manage day-to-day operations. This
models places all of the major stakeholders at the same table via a parking authority board or
commission, which often results in all parties gaining a deeper understanding of the complexities
of parking and the often competing interest of various constituent groups.

NelsoniNygaard Consulting Associales Inc. | 15



DOWNTOWN PARKING MANAGEMENT PLAN
City of Trenton, New Jersey

Contract or Business District Model

All functions assumed as an additional area of focus by a public guthority or business district

In an increasing number of communities around the country, downtown business improvement
districts or downtown development authorities have taken over operational responsibility for
parking. Parking is governed by a well-defined operating agreement that sets specific expectations
and guidelines for the management of parking assets. These contracts or operating agreements
are typically reauthorized every three to five years based on whether the defined contract goals
were achieved. If reauthorized, it is not uncommon for new goals and program objectives to be set
for the next contract period.

Parking District Model
All functions integrated within a defined geographic boundary

A parking district’s geographic boundaries and responsibility for district improvements (parking,
transportation demand management, clean and safe programs, events/programming, etc.)
generally are managed by the district to better promote downtown vitality and activation.
Parking thus becomes a tool for economic development, place making and other larger district
goals. A Parking District could be a newly created, standalone organization or overlaid with an
existing Business District for an amalgam of options #3 and 4.

Alternative Organizational Options

In addition to the four primary organizational models, several newer variations have emerged in
recent years. These may have less applicability for Trenton and are provided more as reference.

* The “Professional Services Model” is a leaner City department type option that outsources
most functions but elevates the functions that do remain to more of a professional
services level focused on the essential administrative services such as overall program
management, contract administration, special projects, accounting and auditing, etc.

* For communities that have decided to promote environmental sustainability as a primary
goal, the “EcoDistrict” Model integrates sustainability as a defining element of the
parking and transportation organizational framework. The EcoDistrict model recognizes
that parking management can advance community-scale sustainability performance goals
through strategies including energy and water management, use of alternative modes of
transportation (e.g., bicycles and pedestrians), and development of trip reduction and
car-sharing programs. Parking revenue can also be invested in a variety of sustainability
initiatives, such as the use of permeable pavement and other low-impact development
techniques in municipal parking lots. The Eco-District model can be either a standalone
model or “an approach” overlaid onto other models.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 16



21 | "ou) sejerpossy Bunnsuon preebApuosiey

Joujsiq juawaBeuely ((H AissaAlun
pue umojumog (0D) Japinog

@ ‘esiog — uonesodior)
Juawdojarag Ang jeuden Qg Joany uuy

Aedipunw Bugoenuoa

SAUEA ybinosy) sak ybnoy) *aajoruoo ybnoiu JoN

"lem BUOp Jou J| UOISSIU-JO,
fouabe ay Gue) o) pes) uen “preoy-uo
pue pauioju) Ay s pieoq Jiay) Jey) pue

anjuaa xajdwoo sy} uo ayey o} Aoedes sy
ssasse Aeanuo Qg aul iey) uepodw) sy

“Jonuoz A7) Jo Juawysinbuyas ewos

‘S30IN0sal payuy| aAey Aew arojalay)
pue eale pajw| e Ajuo sassalppy

"Suonnjos paseq-Jouisip
ayioads 3)B210 0) SaNUBASI paseq
-Jouis)p Guibesaaal uo pasnooj si e
fmua paseq Ajeaydelboeb e sajealr)

‘passalppe
ApAo3Yja senssi uogepodsues pue Gupyed
Bulaas U J5a1ajul palsaa e aAey JBL)
sajpuabe Bunsixa pue Buons sabesana

Auoyny Bupped ybingsiid ;
“fwouiny Bunpey eiydipeiyd S Y
SSUeA {(Aiedipunw eia) sap
"jdaose o) yipmpueq sanss| [eaniod ajgelisapun

8UJ} 9ABY JOU ABW SIBqWIALY
Ajunwwoo pajsaaul Apessje
1eU} .peoq Jayjoue J94, sjeal uen

"|0)u03
A9 J0 uawysinbuias swog

0} P3| UBD YaNyM SLISIUOD
Bupped jo snooj alp sulewal Ay
"$80N0S8J PUE JB]S U) SJUSUASaAUI
annbai Aew ‘Asuajadisod
8103 & aq Jou Aew Bupped

“Aem |njBulueaw e u| siapjoyayels
Koy sabebu3 “sanjjod woy
uonesedas Jo sa16ap e SapiADL

‘Aeonijed
BASIYOR 0] JSa15ED ARRiousb
S| PUE |0AUCD WNIXew suleyal Ao

‘votssiu pue uoisia wesbold ansijoy e punose
pazjuebio aoueuuopsd wesboid paoueyus pue uogeupiood Aaljed ‘seifieuks pasosduul 10} smofie Jauuew pajeiBau) pue ansuayasdwed e v sjusuodwod wesbord

Ile Guibevey (‘oje ‘Buiuueld ‘Bupuncaoereoueuy ‘jaaxns-yo '1aaxs-U0 ‘sucieIado JusLE0I0ME 1B YONS SLOJOUN) SNOUEA 0 UopEjuswhey [edunw [BoIdk; alg o)

paleduwioo) Ajue |euoyerado s(buis e sapun yuswsbeuew Bupyed jo sjpadse (e jo uopesBajul [eaiuaa, sy S) suondo asay) || J0 Juawsje [E9NUD pUE UOWILWOT 3y

‘speau
uopepodsuesn pue Gupped jesw
0} Spunj paseq-jauisip Guibelana)
eaJe paulap e uiym Bupped abeuew
0} pajeald s| pieoq paseq-ousip y

‘Juautaalbe uswabeuew
paulyap-jem e eja Guped abeupw
0] Aupgisucdsal uamb s) sseusaoays
s)) uanaud sey jey) uoneziuedio bunsixa uy

*0}8 *sa9) joedun
'$83)-N8||-u| ‘'sjuswssasse [eioads
Se 4oans sa2.n0s Guipuny Jayjo apnjoul
few pue ease opdesBoab pauygag

“Ajuoyine Juawdojaaap Jo JousIp ssauisng
aaloaya pue Buons Buysixa ue sebesana

19u1s1Q Burey 191451 SS3UISNEAILIUOY

*JOJ03IP SANDSXS UB PUE SI0}03JIp
JO pieoq paseq-AuUnwLoD
e Aq pa) Aleoidh L "saanoalqo
PuE sanijiqisuodsal pauyap yim
jounod Ao Aq pajealn ainjons
UOISSIWWGD Jo Ajuoyine uy

"2Jnjonys A)jo sy uijm
Juawyedap pajesBajul £|jeonap,

‘pUeoq paseq-Ajluntwo
B PUE i0}alip dA|NJaxD
ue Aq pabeuew sappqisucdsal
Juawabeuew Buppeq

‘Juawpedap jeuonouny suo
Japun suonouny Bupped Aewud |y

uoissilwwonAjuoyiny Guiysey

Juawpedag pajeplosuon

suodo |9poyy |euoneziuebig

A3s1af MBN ‘uojualy Jo Q1D
NVId LNJWIAOVNYIN ONIMHYd NMOLNMOd

aydwex3

Aypeden
Butpuog

safiejueapesiqg
Kiewug

safejueapy
Arewid

Sjuauiefs [eaguy)

anonis
[euoneziueBin

sopsusioRseyD)
Buugeq

1 aanbig



DOWNTOWN PARKING MANAGEMENT PLAN
City of Trenton, New Jersey

Best Practice Operational Model Options

While every parking program operates a little differently, most can be categorized into one of
three primary approaches for operating parking programs (more fully described in

Figure 8):

1. Self-Operation: The organization manages the parking program itself. For example, a
downtown parking authority could hire the necessary staff to internally operate the parking
system.

2. OQutsourced Management Contract: A private parking management firm is hired to
handle day-to-day operations and maintenance through a management contract. Through the
management contract, the private parking management firm is paid a fixed management fee
and/or a percentage of gross revenues and is reimbursed by the owner for all costs incurred in
the operation.

3. Outsourced Concession Agreement: A parking management firm is hired to assume full
responsibility for all aspects of the operation, including expenses, and the parking
management firm pays the owner a guaranteed amount and/or a percentage of gross
revenues (or 2 combination).

While any of the organizational models could utilize any of the operational models, most parking
programs utilize the self-management or management agreement operating methodologies or
some hybrid of the two.

Figure 8 Operational Model Options

- Self-Operation Management Contract Concession Agreement

Management contract approach

Concession style approach to

Basic Idea to providing parking providing parking management
{Defining !n-hous?k_manageﬂent of management experlise (City expertise (City retains less
Characteristics) parking assets. retains a fairly high level of controf -~ more hands off
controi). approach).
Highest level of contral, ; . Lowest level of City control.
Primary however it requires more city Perfon':!ance mctenftl ;ez rs;vard This option is generally uilized
Advantages investment. All parking ac Il-?vemen 0 :n.n for specific facilities such as
revenues remain with the City. AEfomance oS, airports or convention centers.
Reqlt':ﬁ].a. lruetrt;qnjmltmegt o Still requires some City staff to Requires confidence in the
Primary :levelég:?ént 'gghﬁg . oversee contract, facilties, and  vendor who is responsible for
Disadvantages significant in\.;estme o provide overall program all operations. Concession
faciiies management and management. Amanagement  payments typically higher than
; fee must be paid. management agreement,
maintenance,
Example Missoula Parking Commission City of Oakland, CA San Francisco Airport

Nelson\Nygaard Consulling Asscciates Inc. | 18



Commissioner Hoff asked what changes have been made from previous strategic plans. She
also suggested that the museum host more events for increased exposure when it is safe to do
so; including City meetings.

Museum Director Pielak identified the following changes:

« Increased internet capacity

» Enhanced digital storage

» Developing a landscape master plan and restoration changes to the grounds.

o Implementation of interpretive planning.

e Social media and virtual contact with the Museum’s audiences.
Museum Director Pielak welcomed the suggestion with enthusiasm to host more events at the
museum.

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Hoff:
To accept the proposed 2021-2024 Birmingham Museum Strategic Plan.

ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman
Commissioner Hoff
Mayor Pro-Tem Longe
Commisisoner Baller
Commissioner Host
Commissioner Nickita
Mayor Boutros

Nays, None

09-175-20 ALTERNATE STRUCTURES FOR MANAGING PARKING SYSTEMS
City Manager Valentine presented this item.

Commissioner Baller complimented City Manager Valentine on the reports provided and
acknowledged that this is what he expected when requesting this discussion. He expressed that
he is partial to the third suggested resolution.

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, seconded by Commissioner Host:

To direct staff to solicit a proposal from Nelson Nygard to amend their September 2018 Downtown
Parking Plan to study alternate management structures and best practices for managing parking
systems and present a report with recommendations to the City Commission.

Commissioner Hoff expressed that the motion was premature because of the lack of discussion by
the Commission prior to the motion. She further stated that Nelson Nygard did one of the other
studies in New Jersey and asked if they did study any other cities. Commissioner Hoff asked what
would the charge be for revisiting the management of Birmingham parking systems. She also asked
for identification of the perceived problems that the City needs to address.

City Manager Valentine affirmed that they studied Trenton, New Jersey as well. He estimated cost
would be approximately $20,000 for consulting on the management structure, but if the option is
approved, he would return with real numbers. City Manager Valentine expressed that this is a topic
that the Commission should discuss for clarity on the scope of work.

] August 24, 2020



Commissioner Baller expressed that when a fragmented management structure exist, there is no
single source of management and there is some value in having a specialized team per the Durham
report. He went on to suggest a goal setting session as the first step in the process when the
consultant is engaged.

City Manager Valentine explained to Commission Baller how the process works to achieve desired
outcomes.

Commissioner Nickita expressed that he is questioning the driver of this initiative. In his opinion,
there is a successful existing structure here in Birmingham, consisting of the City Manager, Assistant
City Manager, SP Plus, as well as a citizen and public component. He added that while there is
always room for improvement, he would like to know what is wrong with the current structure.
Currently, the system is altered due to COVID19, it may be the new normal so how would a new
scope be properly evaluated.

Commission Hoff commented on the differences in the City’s organizational structure and the premise
that the Durham study relied on for a report, Additionally, the commission had not made a decision
te move in the direction of changing the management structure of the existing system, so she asked
why would anyone be studying the Durham report. The only complaint has been the lack of parking
and is concerned why it is important to entertain this project now.

Commissioner Baller expressed his want to pursue this issue now due to the luxury of time that
the pandemic has provided because he does not agree that the current parking system is
operating well.

Commissioner Sherman explained that consultants are traditionally hired to help the City resolve
a defined problem. While it is not a bad idea to look at alternate management structures that
can be used within the existing system, cost should be examined before considering moving
forward.

Mayor Boutros concurred with Commissioner Sherman. He further stated that it could be useful
to look at this issue in terms of post pandemic realities with a consultant.

Commissioner Hoff noted that the commission must have goals and objective identified to
engage a consultant.

Mayor Boutros countered that the consultants could help define goals.

City Manager Valentine offered that part of the consultants’ scope could be to facilitate a goals
and objectives session with the commission to assist in that part of the process.

Commissioner Sherman pointed that options for other various systems within the City have been
studied in the past to insure efficient operations within the constraints of municipal government;
and this could be the goal for this system as well. He went on to reiterate that cost would be
the deciding factor.

Commissioner Hoff expressed that she could go along with having the Birmingham Parking
Management System evaluated by Nelson Nygard for best practices including comparisons.

9 August 24, 2020



Commissioner Baller suggested that the motion covers all of the concerns expressed by the
commissioners and called for the previous question.

Public Comment

Mr. Reagan, resident, commented that there is a need for an assessment of the current system
and a benchmark for best practices. Due to the losses from free parking, he asked is cost really
a concern.

David Bloom, resident, pointed out that the Planning Board in reference to the master plan
discussed potentially offering free parking spaces to developers to incentivize housing
development in downtown Birmingham. He supported having the right systems in place to
evaluate the current parking situation.

Commissioner Sherman suggested striking the word alternative from the motion, thereby
studying the current structure as well as alternate structures to resolve the debate.

Commissioner Baller agreed to the suggested amendment.

AMENDED MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner
Baller:

To direct staff to solicit a proposal from Nelson Nygard to amend their September 2018 Downtown

Parking Plan to study alterrate management structures and best practices for managing parking

systems and present a report with recommendations.

Commissioner Hoff asked for specifics on evaluating the systems.

City Manager Valentine elaborated on the amended motion, in terms of scope of work, as follows:
o Assessment with the Commission to define goals.
« Review existing condition
» Identifying alternative models for consideration of best practices.
» Evaluating recommendations for improvement.

Public Comment

Mr. Reagan, resident, underscored that consultants look for key words in RFP’s and the word
assessment has a clear meaning. Due to the quantitative nature of assessing, it drives costs
exponentially.

ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman
Commissioner Baller
Commissioner Hoff
Commissioner Host
Commissioner Nickita
Mayor Pro-Tem Longe
Mayor Boutros

Nays, None

ORIGINAL MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, seconded by Commissioner Host:

To direct staff to solicit a proposal from Nelson Nygard to amend their September 2018 Downtown
Parking Plan to study management structures and best practices for managing our parking systems
and present a report with recommendations to the Commission.

10 August 24, 2020



BIRMINGHAM
“The Shopping Distict MEMORANDUM

DATE: October 2, 2020

TO: Commander Scott Grewe

FROM: Ingrid Tighe, Executive Director, Birmingham Shopping District
SUBJECT: APC Support for TV Segments

Once again this year, the Birmingham Shopping District will air a holiday marketing campaign to
include advertising on WXYZ TV Channel 7, WDIV Channel 4, Comcast cable channels, and
HULU, YouTube, and more.

Our ads will highlight the downtown shopping, dining and spa experience. Each of the ads will
promote free parking in the decks. The goal of the ads is to drive traffic to downtown
Birmingham, benefiting merchants and the parking system.

This year the Birmingham Shopping District is committing a total of $50,000 for our holiday
shopping campaign. We are requesting the Advisory Parking Committee to approve a $25,000
commitment from the parking fund for the campaign. This would be the ninth year of a
financial commitment from the APC.

Holiday Advertising
Print (Eagle, Eccentric, Downtown Publications, Oakland Press, Jewish

News, Chaldean News, SEEN Magazine, HOUR, DBusiness) $10,000
Digital (FB, IG, WDIV Click on Detroit, WXYZ, Oakland County Moms,
YouTube, Comcast on demand) $15,000

Broadcast (Ch. 4,7, 2, HULU, Comcast, NPR, Spotify, iheart radio, GSTV) $45,000

Signage (I-75 billboard, garage banners, posters, misc.) $5,000

The advertising vignettes will provide a strong push for the parking system, as the host will
close out every segment with a strong statement about parking in Birmingham. These 15 and
30-second ads will feature a graphic at the end of the spot highlighting free parking in the
decks incorporating the parking logo for the shopping district.

We request that the Advisory Parking Committee recommend this expenditure in support of the
BSD holiday marketing campaign.



!P(?cf%ﬁmeMm

DATE:
TO:
FROM:

SUBJECT:

A Waihable Community

June 3, 2020

MEMORANDUM

Office of the City Manager

Advisory Parking Committee

Tiffany J. Gunter, Assistant City Manager

Master Plan Summary — Committee Comments

At the May 2020 APC meeting, it was agreed that committee members would submit
comments regarding the City's Master Plan to staff and staff would aggregate those
comments to help guide the discussion for the June meeting. Staff assembled the
following table and shared with committee members that highlighted any portions of the
draft master plan document that were parking related:

Master Plan Summary Document — Cheat Sheet

Master Plan Summary Document — Cheat Sheet

Downtown

Bicycle Parking / EV
Charger

Other Districts
(Triangle, Rail, Adam
8q., etc.)

Residential/Neighborhoods

Pg 10 - Overnight
parking

Pg 8 — Bicycle parking
in parks

Pg 9 — Public parking
investment (Triangle
District development
attraction tool)

Pg 7 -Neighborhood
gathering places/off-street
parking

Pg 14 — Parking
requirements for

Pg 8-
Enhance/expand

Pg 10 —Shared
parking arrangements

Pg 12 - Parking
restrictions/ Residential

ADUs (Accessory streetside bicycle {mixed use parking permits
Dwelling Units) paring (micro- developments with
mobility) Residential}
Pg 17 - Wayfinding, Pg 17 — Bicycle Pg 17 - Wayfinding Pg 21 - Parking
Dining Decks parking within public | for parking requirements
streetscape

Pg 18 — Unbundled
residential parking

Pg 19 —EV Chargers
and secure bicycle

Pg 18 — Unbundled
residential parking,

expansion studies,
manthly permit sales
increase, parking

study (5 year) parking in parking Triangle district
garages parking deck

Pg 19 — Downtown Pg 20 — New

parking capacity assessment

{incremental tax)
district, parking deck,
metered parking




technology, Lot 6

parking garage

Pg20-S.0ld Pg 22 — Rail district
Woodward Surface parking structure
Lot parking

Pg 21 - Reduced
parking requirements
(shared parking
alternative)

The following comments were received prior to the June meeting. The committee is
asked to discuss the following areas where agreement or disagreement with the
proposals in the draft master plan has been identified and determine how this feedback
will be shared with the Planning Department.

Bicycle Parking

The bike rack in front of lot #6 rarely gets used. Maybe if you build it they will come. Perhaps
add a biking question to the next parking survey.

Agree that we need enhanced and expanded streetside bicycle parking with additional parking
areas for micro mobility devices.

Any Comments on bicycle parking in decks?

Wayfinding/Directory

Wayfinding very important and needs to be improved, agree very much with master plan.
Business directory, great idea.

Outdoor Dining Decks

Agree with reducing # of dining decks to improve parking. Reduce # of permitted dining decks
isnh:)hpep g:-g .Woodworth, Hamiiton, Merrell, Pierce, West Maple area to improve parking for retail

Limit Restaurants to one deck each, and limit the number of decks as to two per block

Permits should be reviewed periodically to be congruent with other retail establishments on the
block. To be preferential to restaurants over retail seems unfair.

Definitely not a fan of the proposed pavilion and restrooms in Lot #6. Too many parking spaces
lost These are the most convenient spaces in the lot. Also, previous discussion of a deck in Lot
#6 indicated that it was not possible due to underground sewers.

Parking Requirements

Explanation: Unbundled parking would allow a potential developer to remove the parking
requirement and allow for overnight shared parking in the municipal garages.
2



Explanation: The accessory dwelling units proposal would require that the homeowner
must still live there, but when building the accessory unit would not be required to add
additional parking. The purpose of including these ideas in the future plan for the City is
part of the effort to achieve more attainable housing.

Comment received: Incentivizing development by reducing parking requirements seems to
invite parking issues

Bates Street Project

Bates street extension. Too costly, too disruptive, and too big of a negative impact on Booth
Park. | would rather see a new deck built on the surface lot.

Booth park could use a parking lot to allow parents to safely discharge their children to play in
the park. We have a park without parking.

Major Parking Infrastructure Projects

There was discussion in the past to add two levels to the Pierce parking structure. | still think
this is a good idea since the deck is in the core of downtown.

Agree with an investment in public parking within the triangle district/ Hanes Square district in
order to service existing and encourage additional development,
Build Walgreens parking deck as planned

Residential Permit Parking

Agree with the need to reassign parking restrictions citywide allowing each neighberhood to
select one of the following options:

A: no restriction

8: two hour parking

C: permit by parking only 5 PM to 10 AM

D: possibly a 4-hour option



MONTHLY PARKING PERMIT REPORT
For the month of: August 2020
Date Compiled: Saptember 14 , 2020

2, Daily Spaces 370 348 224 359 425 NIA NIA NIA N/A NIA NIA 1726

3. Manthly Spaces 36 463 213 386 560 174 79 a 30 40 150 2439

4. Monthly Permits 678 845 486 881 1218 177 40 8 a0 50 225 4636
Authorized

5. Permits - end of 674 750 475 780 1140 172 40 B 14 50 220 4342
previous month

6. Permits - end of month 671 750 475 797 1138 172 40 a 14 50 220 4336

8, Permits Issued in

manth Includes pamits

effectiva 13! of manth Q o o 1] a a '] o o a ] 1]
9, Parmits givan up in month 3 o a 2 o a [ ) o 1] ] 5

11, On List - end of month®
=On List-Unique Individuals

12, Added to list In menth ] 1 7 1 4 ¢ 1} 0 0 a 0 198
13. Withdrawn from list (1] o a 0 [} [ o [ [} [ o ]
in month {w/o permit)
14. Average # of weeks on 143 B2 141 128 5T o ] o ] o L] 545
list for parmits issusd
in month
15, Translent parker occupled N/A® NIAS=" NS+ NIAS NiA® NIA NIA NIA N/A NIA N/A 0
18, Monthly parker occupied NIA™"® NIA™* /A NIA®® WIAS NIA N/A NIA NIA NiA NIA 1]
17, Total parker occupied NIA NIAT N/A™™ NIA® NIA™* NiA NIA NiA N/A N/A N/A 0

HA N

19. “All Day" parkers
paying 5 hrs_ or more
AWsekday average NIA® Nrae NIA® [ A A [0 KA A, i L0 4]
B:*Maximum day NIA® NiAs NIA® WA WA= Hih L A HA ha o

{1} Lot #6 doas not have gate control, therafore no transient count avallable
(2} (Permits/Qversall Factor + Weekday Avg.) / Tolal Spaces

* Average Maximum day not availabis currently in Skidata

" Unique individuals rep it the actual bar of unigue people on the wail kst regardiess of how many structures they have requesied.
“*Gates up during COVID-19 -TransientMonthly currently unavailable-FREE UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2020.




5P+

Birmingham Parking System
Transient & Free Parking Analysis
Months of August 2019 & August 2020

August 2019
GARAGE TOTAL CARS FREE CARS CASH REVENUE % FREE
PEABODY 19,996 11,256 | § 41,608.00 56%
PARK 22,708 9614 | § 57,415.00 42%
CHESTER 6,758 2,896 | $ 41,177.00 43%
WOODWARD 13,171 5045 | § 40,971.00 45%
PIERCE 28,713 13,062 | $ 77,805.00 45%
TOTALS 91,346 42,773 | $  258976.00 |  47%
August 2020
GARAGE TOTAL CARS FREE CARS CASH REVENUE % FREE
PEABODY™** 20,769 20,769 | § - 100%
PARK** 19,915 19,915 | § 108.00 100%
CHESTER™ 7,563 7563 | % - 100%
WOODWARD*™ 2,702 2702 | % - 100%
PIERCE* 31,145 31,145 | § - 100%
TOTALS 82,094 82,094 | $ 108.00 100%
BREAKDOWN: |TOTAL CARS -10%
FREE CARS +192%
CASH REVENUE -99.9%

**All Gates up starting March 17 for free parking. August 2020 car counts are based passages from lo

$108.00 Park Street Payment for validation account.

Page 1



